
HEARING TO BE CONDUCTED UNDER THE TERMS OF THE LICENSING ACT 2003 
 

 
 
 

 
City of Westminster 
 

  
 

Committee Agenda 
 

Title: 
 

 Licensing Sub-Committee (2) 

   

Meeting Date: 
 

 Thursday 27 July 2023 

   

Time: 
 

 10.00 am 

   

Venue: 
 

 This will be an MS Teams Virtual Meeting 

   

Members:  Councillors: 
  Maggie Carman (Chair) 

Iman Less 
Caroline Sargent 

    
 If you require further information, please contact the Committee 

Officer, Sarah Craddock, Committee and Councillor Co-ordinator. 
Email: scraddock@westminster.gov.uk Tel: 07790980186 
Corporate Website: www.westminster.gov.uk 

 
 

http://www.westminster.gov.uk/


 

 

Note for Members: Members are reminded that officer contacts are shown at the end of 
each report and Members are welcome to raise questions in advance of the meeting.  
Regarding Item 2, guidance on Declarations of Interests is included in the Code of 
Governance. If Members and Officers have any questions, they should contact the 
Director of Law before the meeting please. 
AGENDA 
PART 1 (IN PUBLIC)  
 
1.   MEMBERSHIP  

 To report any changes to the membership. 
 

 
 
2.   DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  

 To receive declarations by Members and Officers of the 
existence and nature of any pecuniary interests or any other 
significant interest in matters on this agenda. 
 

 

 
 Licensing Applications for Determination 

 
 

 
1.   MAISON ESTELLE, 6 GRAFTON STREET, W1S 4EQ (Pages 1 - 78) 

 Ward 
CIA* 
SCZ** 

Site Name & 
Address 

Application 
Type 

Licensing 
Reference No. 

West End 
  
* None 
  
** None 
  

Maison Estelle 
6 Grafton Street 
W1S 4EQ 
  

Premises Licence 
Variation 

23/01877/LIPV 

*Cumulative Impact Area 
** Special Consideration Zone 

  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



 
 

 

3

2.   CALEDONIA GROUP SERVICES LTD, 30 BUCKINGHAM 
GATE, SW1E 6NU 

(Pages 79 - 
104) 

 Ward 
CIA* 
SCZ** 

Site Name & 
Address 

Application 
Type 

Licensing 
Reference No. 

St 
James’s 
  
*  None 
  
** None 
  

Caledonia Group 
Services Ltd 
30 Buckingham Gate 
SW1E 6NU 
  

New Premises 
Licence 

23/02324/LIPN 
  

*Cumulative Impact Area 
** Special Consideration Zone 

  
 

 

 
 
Stuart Love  
Chief Executive 
19 July 2023 
 
 



 
 

 

4

In considering applications for Premises Licences under the Licensing Act 2003, the Sub 
Committee is advised of the following: 

Policy Considerations 
The Licensing Sub-Committee is required to have regard to the City of Westminster 
statement of Licensing Policy, effective from January 2021. 

Guidance Considerations 
The Licensing Sub-Committee is required to have regard to any guidance issued by the 
Secretary of State under Section 182 the Licensing Act 2003.  The most recent version 
was published in April 2018. 

Core hours When Customers Are Permitted to Be on The Premises  
Core hours, as set out in the Council’s Statement of Licensing Policy 2021, are when 
customers are permitted to be on the Premises. The maximum opening hours permitted 
will not exceed the start time and terminal hour for each of the days where licensable 
activity is permitted.  
Note: The core hours are for all licensable activities but if an application includes Late 
Night Refreshment, then the starting time for that licensable activity will be 11.00 pm. 

1. Casinos  
Up to 24 hours a day whilst Casino Gaming is permitted by a Premises Licence under 
the Gambling Act 2005.  

2. Cinemas, Cultural Venues and Live Sporting Premises 
Monday to Sunday:  09:00 hours to 24:00 hours 

3. Hotels 
Monday to Thursday:  09:00 hours to 23:30 hours 
Friday and Saturday:  09:00 hours to 24:00 hours  
Sunday:  09:00 hours to 22:30 hours 
Sundays Immediately Prior To A Bank Holiday: 09:00 hours to 24:00 hours 
Sale of alcohol to guests for 
consumption in hotel/guest rooms only: Anytime up to 24 hours 

4. Off licences 
Monday to Saturday:  08:00 hours to 23:00 hours 
Sunday:  09:00 hours to 22:30 hours 

5. Outdoor Spaces 
Monday to Thursday:  09:00 hours to 23:30 hours 
Friday and Saturday:  09:00 hours to 24:00 hours 
Sunday:  09:00 hours to 22:30 hours 
Sundays Immediately Prior To A Bank Holiday: 09:00 hours to 24:00 hours 

6. Pubs and bars, Fast Food and Music and Dance venues  
Monday to Thursday:  10:00 hours to 23:30 hours 
Friday and Saturday: 10:00 hours to 24:00 hours 
Sunday:  12:00 hours to 22:30 hours 



 
 

 

5

Sundays Immediately Prior To A Bank Holiday: 12:00 hours to 24:00 hours 
7. Qualifying Clubs  

Monday to Thursday:  09:00 hours to 24:00 hours 
Friday and Saturday:  09:00 hours to 24:00 hours 
Sunday:  09:00 hours to 22:30 hours 
Sundays Immediately Prior To A Bank Holiday: 09:00 hours to 24:00 hours 

8. Restaurants 
Monday to Thursday:  09:00 hours to 23:30 hours 
Friday and Saturday:  09:00 hours to 24:00 hours 
Sunday:  09:00 hours to 22:30 hours 
Sundays Immediately Prior To A Bank Holiday: 09:00 hours to 24:00 hours 

9. Sexual Entertainment Venues and Sex Cinemas 
Monday to Thursday:  09:00 hours to 23:30 hours 
Friday and Saturday:  09:00 hours to 24:00 hours 
Sunday:  09:00 hours to 22:30 hours 
Sundays Immediately Prior To A Bank Holiday: 09:00 hours to 24:00 hours 

 



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Item No:   

   

Date:  27 July 2023 

   

Licensing Ref No:  23/01877/LIPV - Premises Licence Variation 

   

Title of Report:  Maison Estelle 
6 Grafton Street 
London 
W1S 4EQ 

   

Report of:  Director of Public Protection and Licensing 

   

Wards involved:  West End 

   

Policy context:  City of Westminster Statement of Licensing Policy  

   

Financial summary:  None 

   

Report Author:  Roxsana Haq 
Senior Licensing Officer 

   

Contact details  Telephone: 020 7641 6500 
Email: rhaq@westminster.gov.uk 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Licensing Sub-Committee 
Report 

page 1

Agenda Item 1.



 

1. Application 
 

1-A Applicant and premises 
 

Application Type: Variation of a Premises Licence, Licensing Act 2003 
 

Application received date: 24 March 2023 

Applicant: Maison Estelle Limited 

Premises: Maison Estelle 

Premises address: 6 Grafton Street 
London 
W1S 4EQ 
 

Ward: 
 

West End 

Cumulative 
Impact Area: 

None 

 Special 
Consideration 
Zone: 

None 

Premises description: 
 

Tthe premises operates as a Private Members’ Club from a 
Grade I listed Georgian building. 
 

Variation description: 
 

The application proposes to vary the existing Premises Licence 
by regularising the existing terminal hours for the Basement 
and Lower Ground Floor on Wednesday to Saturday. And 
extend hours across all floors Monday to Saturday. 
No changes are being sought to existing conditions, any 
licensable activities on Sundays or non-standard timings. 
 

Premises licence history: 
 

The premises has had the benefit of a premises licence since 
2017. The current premises licence (22/11947/LIPVM) can be 
viewed at Appendix 1 of this report along with the premises 
licence history at Appendix 2. 
 

Applicant submissions: As part of the application the applicant has provided the 
following documents: 

• A copy of the mediation letter sent to the objector.  

• An acoustics report 

• Dispersal Policy 

• Observations by independent licensing consultant  
 

 
These can be found at Appendix 3. 
 

Applicant amendments: Following the agreement of conditions with the Metropolitan 
Police Service and an interested party the applicant has limited 
the capacity for premises after 01.00 hours so they shall not 
exceed 425 excluding staff.  
The full set of conditions can be seen at Appendix 4. 

 

page 2



 

1-B Current and proposed licensable activities, areas and hours. 
 

Regulated Entertainment: 
 

• Performance of Dance  

• Exhibition of a Film 

• Performance of Live Music 

• Playing of Recorded Music 

• Performance of Live Music 

• Anything of a similar description to Live Music, Recorded Music or Performance 
of Dance 

• Performance of a Play 
 

Current  
Hours 

Proposed  
Hours 

Licensable Area 

Current: Proposed: 

Monday to Sunday:                    
08:00 to 01:00  
(Ground, 1st, 2nd & 3rd 
Floors) 
Sunday to Tuesday:                    
08:00 to 01:00 (Basement & 
Lower Ground Floor) 
Wednesday to Saturday:       
08:00 to 02:30 (Basement & 
Lower Ground Floor) 
Monday to Sunday:                    
08:00 to 23.30 (Roof Terrace) 
 

Monday to 
Saturday: 
08:00 to 02:30 
 
Sundays: 
08:00 to 01:00 

Various floors as 
detailed in current 
hours column and 
plans appended 
to existing 
premises licence 

 
All floors. 

Seasonal  
Variations / 
Non-standard  
timings: 

Current: Proposed: 

An additional hour when British 
Summertime commences. 
 
From the end of permitted hours on 
New Years Eve to the start of permitted 
hours on New Years Day. Permitted 
hours on Sundays immediately before 
Bank Holiday Mondays the same as 
permitted hours on Fridays and 
Saturdays. 
 

 
No change is proposed. 

 

page 3



 

Late night refreshment 
 

Indoors, outdoors or both Current : Proposed: 

Indoors No change 

 Current  
Hours 

Proposed  
Hours 

Licensable Area 

Start: End: Start: End: Current: Proposed: 

Monday 23:00 01:00 23:00 02:30  
All floors and roof 
terrace. 

 
 
All floors 

Tuesday 23:00 01:00 23:00 02:30 

Wednesday 23:00 02:30 23:00 02:30 

Thursday 23:00 02:30 23:00 02:30 

Friday 23:00 02:30 23:00 02:30 

Saturday 23:00 02:30 23:00 02:30 

Sunday 23:00 01:00 23:00 01:00 

Seasonal 
variations/ 
Non-standard 
timings: 

Current: Proposed: 

An additional hour when British 
Summertime commences. 
 
From the end of permitted hours on 
New Years Eve to the start of 
permitted hours on New Years Day. 
Permitted hours on Sundays 
immediately before Bank Holiday 
Mondays the same as permitted 
hours on Fridays and Saturdays. 
 

 

 

Sale by Retail of Alcohol 
 

On or off sales Current : Proposed: 

Both No change 

Current  
Hours 

 

Proposed  
Hours 

 

Licensable Area 

Current: Proposed: 

Sunday to Saturday:                    
08:00 to 01:00  
(Ground, 1st, 2nd & 3rd 
Floors) 
Sunday to Tuesday:                    
08:00 to 01:00  
(Basement & Lower Ground 
Floor) 
Wednesday to Saturday:       
08:00 to 02.30 (Basement   &   
Lower Ground Floor) 
Monday to Sunday:                    
08:00 to 23:30 (Roof Terrace) 
 

Monday to 
Saturday: 
08:00 to 02:30 
 
Sundays: 
08:00 to 01:00 
 

Various floors as 
detailed in current 
hours column 

All Floors 

Seasonal variations/ 
Non-standard 
timings: 

Current: Proposed: 

An additional hour when British 
Summertime commences. 
(off sales conditioned to cease at 
23:00 – see condition 18) 
 
From the end of permitted hours on 

 
No change is proposed. 

page 4



New Years Eve to the start of 
permitted hours on New Years Day. 
Permitted hours on Sundays 
immediately before Bank Holiday 
Mondays the same as permitted 
hours on Fridays and Saturdays. 
 

 

Hours premises are open to the public 
 

Current  
Hours 

Proposed  
Hours 

 

Premises Area 

Current: Proposed: 

Sunday to Tuesday:                      
07:00 to 01:30  
(Basement, Lower Ground 
Floor) 
Wednesday to Saturday                                  
07:00 to 03:00  
(Basement, lower Ground 
Floor) 
Sunday to Saturday                                  
07:00 to 01:30  
(Ground, 1st, 2nd, 3rd Floor) 
Monday to Sunday                                  
07:00 to 23.30 (Roof Terrace) 
 

Monday to 
Saturday: 
07:00 to 03:00 
 
Sundays: 
07:00 to 01:30 

All floors as 
detailed in the 
current hours 
column. 

All floors 

Seasonal 
variations/ 
Non-standard 
timings: 

Current: Proposed: 

An additional hour when British 
Summertime commences. 
 
From the end of permitted hours on 
New Years Eve to the start of 
permitted hours on New Years Day. 
Permitted hours on Sundays 
immediately before Bank Holiday 
Mondays the same as permitted 
hours on Fridays and Saturdays. 
 

No change. 

 

1-C Layout alteration 
 

 
There is no layout alteration being sought. 
 

 

1-D Conditions being varied, added or removed 
 

Condition Proposed variation 

 
No conditions are being added, varied / 
removed. 
 

 
N/A 

Adult entertainment: Current position: Proposed position: 

None. None. 

 

page 5



 
 

2-B Other Persons 
 

Name:  

Address and/or Residents Association:  
 

  
 

Status: Valid In support or opposed: Opposed 

Received:  
 

20 April 2023 

 

 
 
 
 

page 6



 
 

page 7



 
 

page 8



 
 
 
 
 

page 9



 
 
 
 

page 10



 
 

page 11



 
 
 

page 12



 
 
 
 

page 13



 
 
 

page 14



 
 

page 15



 
 

page 16



 
 
 
 

page 17



 
 

 
 
 

 

page 18



 

3. Policy & Guidance 
 

The following policies within the City of Westminster Statement of Licensing Policy apply: 
 

Hours Policy HRS1 
applies: 

(i) Applications for hours within the core hours set out below in this 
policy will generally be granted, subject to not being contrary to 
other policies in the Statement of Licensing Policy. 

(ii) Applications for hours outside the core hours set out below in this 
policy will be considered on their merits, subject to other relevant 
policies. 

For premises for the supply of alcohol for consumption on the 
premises: 

Monday to Thursday: 10:00 to 23:30 
Friday and Saturday: 10:00 to midnight 
Sundays immediately prior to Bank Holidays: Midday to midnight 
Other Sundays: Midday to 22:30 

 
For premises for the provision of other licensable activities: 
Monday to Thursday: 09:00 to 23.30 
Friday and Saturday: 09:00 to midnight 
Sundays immediately prior to Bank Holidays: 09:00 to midnight 
Other Sundays: 09:00 to 22:30 

 
Public Houses and 
Bars Policy PB1 
applies: 

 

A.    Applications outside the West End Cumulative Zone will 
generally be granted subject to: 

1.  The application meeting the requirements of policies CD1, 
PS1, PN1 and CH1. 

2. The hours for licensable activities being within the council’s 
Core Hours Policy HRS1. 

3. The operation of any delivery services for alcohol and/or 
latenight refreshment meeting the council’s Ancillary Delivery of 
Alcohol and/or Late-Night Refreshment Policy DEL1. 

4. The applicant has taken account of the Special Consideration 
Zones policy SCZ1 if the premises are located within a 
designated zone. 

5. The application and operation of the venue meet the 
definition of a Public House or Bar in Clause D. 

 

 

page 19



4.         Equality Implications 
 

The Council in its capacity as Licensing Authority has a duty to have regard to  
its public sector equality duty under section 149 of the Equality Act 2010. In  
summary, section 149 provides that a Public Authority must, in the exercise of  
its functions, have due regard to the need to:  

 
(a) eliminate discrimination harassment, victimisation and any other conduct that 
is prohibited by or under this Act;  
(b) advance equality of opportunity between persons who share a relevant 
protected characteristic and persons who do not share it; and  
(c) foster good relations between persons who share a relevant protected 
characteristics and persons who do not share it.  

Section 149 (7) of the Equality Act 2010 defines the relevant protected characteristics as 
age, disability, gender reassignment, marriage and civil partnership, pregnancy and 
maternity, race, religion or belief, sex, and sexual orientation. 

 
 
 

5. Appendices 
 

Appendix 1 
 

Current Premises Licence 

Appendix 2 
 

Applicant supporting documents  

Appendix 3 
 

Premises history 
 

Appendix 4 
 

Proposed conditions 

Appendix 5 Residential map and list of premises in the vicinity 
 

 

Report author: Miss Roxsana Haq 
Senior Licensing Officer 

Contact: Telephone: 020 7641 6500 
Email: rhaq@westminster.gov.uk 
 

 
 

If you have any queries about this report or wish to inspect one of the background 
papers please contact the report author. 
 

Background Documents – Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1972 
 

1 Licensing Act 2003 N/A 
 

2 City of Westminster Statement of Licensing  
Policy  

October 2021 

3 Amended Guidance issued under section 182 of  
the Licensing Act 2003  

December 2022 

4 Interested Party 20 April 2023 

 
 

 
 

 

page 20



Current Issued Premises Licence    Appendix 1 
 
 

 

City of 
Westminster 

64 Victoria Street, London, SW1E 
6QP 

Schedule 12 
Part A 

WARD: West End 
UPRN: 100023473327 

Premises licence 

 
Regulation 33, 34 

 
 
Premises licence number: 
 

 
22/11947/LIPVM 

 

Original Reference:  
 

 

17/09669/LIPN 

 

Part 1 – Premises details 

 

Postal address of premises: 
 
6 Grafton Street 
London 
W1S 4EQ 
 

Telephone Number: Not Supplied 

 

Where the licence is time limited, the dates: 
 
Not applicable 
 

 

Licensable activities authorised by the licence: 
 
Performance of Dance 
Exhibition of a Film 
Performance of Live Music 
Playing of Recorded Music 
Anything of a similar description to Live Music, Recorded Music or Performance of Dance 
Performance of a Play 
Late Night Refreshment 
Sale by Retail of Alcohol 
 

 

The times the licence authorises the carrying out of licensable activities: 
 
Performance of Dance 
 Monday to Sunday:                    08:00 to 01:00 (Ground, 1st, 2nd & 3rd Floors) 
 Sunday to Tuesday:                    08:00 to 01:00 (Basement & Lower Ground Floor) 
             Wednesday to Saturday:       08:00 to 02:30 (Basement & Lower Ground Floor) 
 Monday to Sunday:                    08:00 to 23.30 (Roof Terrace) 
  
Seasonal Details: An additional hour when British Summertime commences 
Non-standard Timings: From the end of permitted hours on New Years Eve to the start of permitted 
hours on New Years Day. Permitted hours on Sundays immediately before Bank Holiday Mondays 
the same as permitted hours on Fridays and Saturdays. 
 

page 21



Exhibition of a Film 
 Monday to Sunday:                    08:00 to 01:00 (Ground, 1st, 2nd & 3rd Floors) 
 Sunday to Tuesday:                    08:00 to 01:00 (Basement & Lower Ground Floor) 
             Wednesday to Saturday:       08:00 to 02:30 (Basement & Lower Ground Floor) 
 Monday to Sunday:                    08:00 to 23.30 (Roof Terrace)  
 
Seasonal Details: An additional hour when British Summertime commences 
Non-standard Timings: From the end of permitted hours on New Years Eve to the start of permitted 
hours on New Years Day. Permitted hours on Sundays immediately before Bank Holiday Mondays 
the same as permitted hours on Fridays and Saturdays. 
 
Performance of Live Music 
 Monday to Sunday:                    08:00 to 01:00 (Ground, 1st, 2nd & 3rd Floors) 
 Sunday to Tuesday:                    08:00 to 01:00 (Basement & Lower Ground Floor) 
             Wednesday to Saturday:       08:00 to 02:30 (Basement & Lower Ground Floor) 
 Monday to Sunday:                    08:00 to 23.30 (Roof Terrace) 
  
Seasonal Details: An additional hour when British Summertime commences 
Non-standard Timings: From the end of permitted hours on New Years Eve to the start of permitted 
hours on New Years Day. Permitted hours on Sundays immediately before Bank Holiday Mondays 
the same as permitted hours on Fridays and Saturdays. 
 
Playing of Recorded Music 
 Monday to Sunday:                    08:00 to 01:00 (Ground, 1st, 2nd & 3rd Floors) 
 Sunday to Tuesday:                    08:00 to 01:00 (Basement & Lower Ground Floor) 
             Wednesday to Saturday:       08:00 to 02:30 (Basement & Lower Ground Floor) 
 Monday to Sunday:                    08:00 to 23.30 (Roof Terrace)  
 
Seasonal Details: An additional hour when British Summertime commences 
Non-standard Timings: From the end of permitted hours on New Years Eve to the start of permitted 
hours on New Years Day. Permitted hours on Sundays immediately before Bank Holiday Mondays 
the same as permitted hours on Fridays and Saturdays. 
 
Anything of a similar description to Live Music, Recorded Music or Performance of Dance 
 Monday to Sunday:                    08:00 to 01:00 (Ground, 1st, 2nd & 3rd Floors) 
 Sunday to Tuesday:                    08:00 to 01:00 (Basement & Lower Ground Floor) 
             Wednesday to Saturday:       08:00 to 02:30 (Basement & Lower Ground Floor) 
 Monday to Sunday:                    08:00 to 23.30 (Roof Terrace) 
 
Seasonal Details: An additional hour when British Summertime commences 
Non-standard Timings: From the end of permitted hours on New Years Eve to the start of permitted 
hours on New Years Day. Permitted hours on Sundays immediately before Bank Holiday Mondays 
the same as permitted hours on Fridays and Saturdays. 
 
Performance of a Play 
 Monday to Sunday:                    08:00 to 01:00 (Ground, 1st, 2nd & 3rd Floors) 
 Sunday to Tuesday:                    08:00 to 01:00 (Basement & Lower Ground Floor) 
             Wednesday to Saturday:       08:00 to 02:30 (Basement & Lower Ground Floor) 
 Monday to Sunday:                    08:00 to 23.30 (Roof Terrace)  
 
Seasonal Details: An additional hour when British Summertime commences 
Non-standard Timings: From the end of permitted hours on New Years Eve to the start of permitted 
hours on New Years Day. Permitted hours on Sundays immediately before Bank Holiday Mondays 
the same as permitted hours on Fridays and Saturdays. 
 
Late Night Refreshment 
 Monday to Tuesday:                    23:00 to 01:00 (All floors and Roof Terrace) 
 Wednesday to Saturday:       23:00 to 02:30 (All floors and Roof Terrace) 
 Sunday:                                 23:00 to 01:00 (All floors and Roof Terrace) 
Seasonal Details: An additional hour when British Summertime commences 
Non-standard Timings: From the end of permitted hours on New Years Eve to the start of permitted 
hours on New Years Day. Permitted hours on Sundays immediately before Bank Holiday Mondays  
 

page 22



Sale by Retail of Alcohol 
 Sunday to Saturday:                    08:00 to 01:00 (Ground, 1st, 2nd & 3rd Floors) 
 Sunday to Tuesday:                    08:00 to 01:00 (Basement   &   Lower Ground Floor) 
             Wednesday to Saturday:       08:00 to 02.30 (Basement   &   Lower Ground Floor) 
 Monday to Sunday:                    08:00 to 23:30 (Roof Terrace) 
                
Seasonal Details: An additional hour when British Summertime commences 
Non-standard Timings: From the end of permitted hours on New Years Eve to the start of permitted 
hours on New Years Day. Permitted hours on Sundays immediately before Bank Holiday Mondays 
  

 

The opening hours of the premises: 
 
Sunday to Tuesday:                      07:00 to 01:30 (Basement, Lower Ground Floor) 
Wednesday to Saturday                                  07:00 to 03:00 (Basement, lower Ground Floor) 
Sunday to Saturday                                  07:00 to 01:30 (Ground, 1st, 2nd, 3rd Floor) 
Monday to Sunday                                  07:00 to 23.30 (Roof Terrace) 
 

 

Where the licence authorises supplies of alcohol, whether these are on and/or off supplies: 
 
Alcohol is supplied for consumption both On and Off the Premises 
 

 
Part 2 
 

Name, (registered) address, telephone number and email (where relevant) of holder of 
premises licence: 
 
Maison Estelle Limited 
Third Floor 
20 Old Bailey 
London 
EC4M 7AN 
 

 

Registered number of holder, for example company number, charity number (where 
applicable) 
 
10564926 
 

 

Name, address and telephone number of designated premises supervisor where the 
premises licence authorises the supply of alcohol: 
 
Name:                              Michael Thomas Ryan   
                                                     
Please note: It is the policy of the Licensing Authority not to display the address details of a 
designated premises supervisor. 
 

 

Personal licence number and issuing authority of personal licence held by designated 
premises supervisor where the premises licence authorises for the supply of alcohol: 
 
Licence Number:                PERS-LIC/1828 
Licensing Authority:          London Borough of Camden 
                                      

 
Date:   26 January 2023 

This licence has been authorised by Jessica Donovan on behalf of the Director - Public Protection 
and Licensing. 

page 23



Annex 1 – Mandatory conditions 

 
 
1. No supply of alcohol may be made at a time when there is no designated premises supervisor in 

respect of this licence. 
 
2. No supply of alcohol may be made at a time when the designated premises supervisor does not 

hold a personal licence or the personal licence is suspended. 
 
3. Every supply of alcohol under this licence must be made or authorised by a person who holds a 

personal licence. 
 
4.          (1)  The responsible person must ensure that staff on relevant premises do not carry out, 

arrange or participate in any irresponsible promotions in relation to the premises. 
 

(2)  In this paragraph, an irresponsible promotion means any one or more of the following 
activities, or substantially similar activities, carried on for the purpose of encouraging the 
sale or supply of alcohol for consumption on the premises— 

 
(a)  games or other activities which require or encourage, or are designed to require or 

encourage, individuals to; 
 

(i)  drink a quantity of alcohol within a time limit (other than to drink alcohol sold or 
supplied on the premises before the cessation of the period in which the 
responsible person is authorised to sell or supply alcohol), or 

(ii)  drink as much alcohol as possible (whether within a time limit or otherwise); 
 

(b)  provision of unlimited or unspecified quantities of alcohol free or for a fixed or discounted 
fee to the public or to a group defined by a particular characteristic in a manner which 
carries a significant risk of undermining a licensing objective; 

 
(c)  provision of free or discounted alcohol or any other thing as a prize to encourage or 

reward the purchase and consumption of alcohol over a period of 24 hours or less in a 
manner which carries a significant risk of undermining a licensing objective; 

 
(d)  selling or supplying alcohol in association with promotional posters or flyers on, or in the 

vicinity of, the premises which can reasonably be considered to condone, encourage or 
glamorise anti-social behaviour or to refer to the effects of drunkenness in any favourable 
manner; 

 
 (e) dispensing alcohol directly by one person into the mouth of another (other than where 

that other person is unable to drink without assistance by reason of a disability). 
 
5.  The responsible person must ensure that free potable water is provided on request to customers 

where it is reasonably available. 
 
6.          (1)  The premises licence holder or club premises certificate holder must ensure that an age 

verification policy is adopted in respect of the premises in relation to the sale or supply of 
alcohol. 

 
(2)  The designated premises supervisor in relation to the premises licence must ensure that 

the supply of alcohol at the premises is carried on in accordance with the age verification 
policy. 

(3) The policy must require individuals who appear to the responsible person to be under 18 

years of age (or such older age as may be specified in the policy) to produce on request, 

before being served alcohol, identification bearing their photograph, date of birth and 

either— 

 (a)  a holographic mark, or 

 (b)  an ultraviolet feature. 

page 24



 
7.  The responsible person must ensure that— 

(a)  where any of the following alcoholic drinks is sold or supplied for consumption on the 

premises (other than alcoholic drinks sold or supplied having been made up in advance 

ready for sale or supply in a securely closed container) it is available to customers in the 

following measures— 

  (i)  beer or cider: ½ pint;  

(ii)  gin, rum, vodka or whisky: 25 ml or 35 ml; and 

   (iii)  still wine in a glass: 125 ml; 

 
(b)  these measures are displayed in a menu, price list or other printed material which is 

available to customers on the premises; and 
 
(c) where a customer does not in relation to a sale of alcohol specify the quantity of alcohol 

to be sold, the customer is made aware that these measures are available. 
 
A responsible person in relation to a licensed premises means the holder of the premise licence in 
respect of the premises, the designated premises supervisor (if any) or any individual aged 18 or over 
who is authorised by either the licence holder or designated premises supervisor.  For premises with a 
club premises certificate, any member or officer of the club present on the premises in a capacity that 
which enables him to prevent the supply of alcohol. 
 
8(i) A relevant person shall ensure that no alcohol is sold or supplied for consumption on or off the 

premises for a price which is less than the permitted price. 
 
8(ii) For the purposes of the condition set out in paragraph 8(i) above - 
 

(a)  "duty" is to be construed in accordance with the Alcoholic Liquor Duties Act 1979; 
 

(b)  "permitted price" is the price found by applying the formula - 
 

P = D+(DxV) 
 

Where - 
  

(i) P is the permitted price, 
(ii) D is the amount of duty chargeable in relation to the alcohol as if the duty     were 

charged on the date of the sale or supply of the alcohol, and 
(iii) V is the rate of value added tax chargeable in relation to the alcohol as if the 

value added tax were charged on the date of the sale or supply of the alcohol; 
 

(c)  "relevant person" means, in relation to premises in respect of which there is in force a 
premises licence - 

   
(i)  the holder of the premises licence, 
(ii)  the designated premises supervisor (if any) in respect of such a licence, or 
(iii)  the personal licence holder who makes or authorises a supply of    alcohol under 

such a licence; 
 

(d)   "relevant person" means, in relation to premises in respect of which there is in force a 
club premises certificate, any member or officer of the club present on the premises in a 
capacity which enables the member or officer to prevent the supply in question; and 

 
(e)  "value added tax" means value added tax charged in accordance with the Value Added 

Tax Act 1994. 
 
8(iii). Where the permitted price given by Paragraph 8(ii)(b) above would (apart from this paragraph) 

not be a whole number of pennies, the price given by that sub-paragraph shall be taken to be the 
price actually given by that sub-paragraph rounded up to the nearest penny. 

page 25



 
8(iv).     (1)  Sub-paragraph 8(iv)(2) below applies where the permitted price given by Paragraph 

8(ii)(b) above on a day ("the first day") would be different from the permitted price on the 
next day ("the second day") as a result of a change to the rate of duty or value added tax. 

(2)  The permitted price which would apply on the first day applies to sales or supplies of 
alcohol which take place before the expiry of the period of 14 days beginning on the 
second day. 

 

 

9. Admission of children to the premises must be restricted in accordance with the film classification 
recommended by the British Board of Film Classification or recommended by this licensing 
authority as appropriate. 

 
10. All persons guarding premises against unauthorised access or occupation or against outbreaks 

of disorder or against damage (door supervisors) must be licensed by the Security Industry 
Authority. 

page 26



Annex 2 – Conditions consistent with the operating Schedule 
 
11. Licensable activities shall only be provided to: 
 
(a) members of a private club and their bona fide guests (not exceeding 4 guests per member). No 

person shall be admitted to membership of the private club or be entitled to take advantage of  
any of the privileges of membership without an interval of at least 24 hours between their 
nomination or application for membership and their admission. 

 
(b) persons attending a pre- booked and bona fide private function or event to which members of the 

public are not admitted. A register of persons attending the event shall be kept at the premises 
for 31 days and made available for immediate inspection by police or an authorised officer of the 
Council.  

 
12. A list of the names and addresses of members of the Club shall be kept on the premises at all 

times together with a book showing the names and dates of attendance of any guests introduced 
by members. Both the list and the book shall be produced on demand for inspection by the police 
or an authorised officer of the Council. 

 
13. The premises shall install and maintain a comprehensive CCTV system as per the minimum 

requirements of the Westminster Police Licensing Team. All entry and exit points will be covered 
enabling frontal identification of every person entering in any light condition. The CCTV system 
shall continually record whilst the premises is open for licensable activities and during all times 
when customers remain on the premises. All recordings shall be stored for a minimum period of 
31 days with date and time stamping. Viewing of recordings shall be made available immediately 
upon the request of Police or authorised officer throughout the entire 31 day period.  

 
14. A staff member from the premises who is conversant with the operation of the CCTV system shall 

be on the premises at all times when the premises is open. This staff member must be able to 
provide a Police or authorised council officer copies of recent CCTV images or data with the 
absolute minimum of delay when requested.  

 
15. An incident log shall be kept at the premises, and made available on request to an authorised 

officer of the City Council or the Police. It must be completed within 24 hours of the incident and 
will record the following: 
(a) all crimes reported to the venue  
(b) all ejections of patrons  
(c) any complaints received concerning crime and disorder  
(d) any incidents of disorder  
(e) all seizures of drugs or offensive weapons 
(f) any faults in the CCTV system 
(g) any refusal of the sale of alcohol 
(h) any visit by a relevant authority or emergency service. 

 
16. Substantial food and non-intoxicating beverages, including drinking water, shall be available in all 

parts of the premises where alcohol is sold or supplied for consumption on the premises. 
 
17. All sales of alcohol for consumption off the premises shall be in sealed containers only, and shall 

not be consumed on the premises.  
 
18. There shall be no sales of alcohol for consumption off the premises after 23:00 hours. 
 
19. There shall be no sales of hot food or hot drink for consumption 'Off' the premises after 23:00 

hours. 
 
20. All windows and external doors shall be kept closed after 23:00 hours, except for the immediate 

access and egress of persons. 
 
21. Notices shall be prominently displayed at all exits requesting patrons to respect the needs of local 

residents and businesses and leave the area quietly. 
 
22. Notices shall be prominently displayed at any area used for smoking requesting patrons to 

respect the needs of local residents and use the area quietly. 

page 27



23. No noise generated on the premises, or by its associated plant or equipment, shall emanate from 
the premises nor vibration be transmitted through the structure of the premises which gives rise 
to a nuisance.  

 
24. During the hours of operation of the premises, the licence holder shall ensure sufficient measures 

are in place to remove and prevent litter or waste arising or accumulating from customers in the 
area immediately outside the premises, and that this area shall be swept and or washed, and 
litter and sweepings collected and stored in accordance with the approved refuse storage 
arrangements by close of business. 

 
25. A Challenge 21 proof of age scheme shall be operated at the premises where the only 

acceptable forms of identification are recognised photographic identification cards, such as a 
driving licence, passport or proof of age card with the PASS Hologram.  

 
26. The approved arrangements at the premises, including means of escape provisions, emergency 

warning equipment, the electrical installation and mechanical equipment, shall at all material 
times be maintained in good condition and full working order. 

 
27. The means of escape provided for the premises shall be maintained unobstructed, free of trip 

hazards, be immediately available and clearly identified in accordance with the plans provided. 
 
28. All emergency exit doors shall be available at all material times without the use of a key, code, 

card or similar means.  
 
29. All emergency doors shall be maintained effectively self-closing and not held open other than by 

an approved device. 
 
30. The edges of the treads of steps and stairways shall be maintained so as to be conspicuous. 
 
31. Curtains and hangings shall be arranged so as not to obstruct emergency safety signs or 

emergency equipment. 
 
32. All fabrics, curtains, drapes and similar features including materials used in finishing and 

furnishing shall be either non-combustible or be durably or inherently flame-retarded fabric. Any 
fabrics used in escape routes (other than foyers), entertainment areas or function rooms, shall be 
non-combustible. 

 
33. There shall be no striptease or nudity, and all persons shall be decently attired at all times, except 

when the premises are operating under the authority of a Sexual Entertainment Venue licence. 
 
34. Unless otherwise agreed in writing with the Metropolitan Police, there shall be: -  

a) A minimum of 2 SIA licensed door supervisors after 9pm; and 
b) A minimum of 1 SIA licensed door supervisor at all times. 

 
35. All SIA door supervisors shall display appropriate SIA identification. 
 
36. There shall be no drinks taken from the premises onto the public highway. 
 
37. Loudspeakers shall not be located in the entrance lobby or outside the premises building 

including the external terrace. 
 
38.  The number of persons permitted on the premises at any one time (excluding staff) shall not 

exceed: 
 

(a) Basement: 150 
(b) Lower Ground Floor: 100 
(c) Ground Floor: 120 
(d) First Floor: 120 
(e) Second Floor: 100 
(f) Third Floor: 100 
(g) Fourth Floor Terrace: 60 
 
Subject to an overall maximum of 600 at any one time. 

page 28



Annex 3 – Conditions attached after a hearing by the licensing authority 
 
None  
 

page 29



 Annex 4 – Plans 
 
 

 

page 30



 

 

 

page 31



 

 

 

page 32



 

 

 

page 33



 

 

 

page 34



 

page 35



 

page 36



 

page 37



 

 

City of 
Westminster 

64 Victoria Street, London, SW1E 
6QP 

Schedule 12 
Part B 

WARD: West End 
UPRN: 100023473327 

Premises licence 
summary 

 
Regulation 33, 34 

 
 

 
Premises licence number: 
 

 
22/11947/LIPVM 

Part 1 – Premises details 

 

Postal address of premises: 
 

6 Grafton Street 
London 
W1S 4EQ 
 

 

Where the licence is time limited, the dates: 
 
Not applicable 
 

 

Licensable activities authorised by the licence: 
 
Performance of Dance 
Exhibition of a Film 
Performance of Live Music 
Playing of Recorded Music 
Anything of a similar description to Live Music, Recorded Music or Performance of Dance 
Performance of a Play 
Late Night Refreshment 
Sale by Retail of Alcohol 
 

 

The times the licence authorises the carrying out of licensable activities: 
 
Performance of Dance 
 Monday to Sunday:                    08:00 to 01:00 (Ground, 1st, 2nd & 3rd Floors) 
 Sunday to Tuesday:                    08:00 to 01:00 (Basement & Lower Ground Floor) 
             Wednesday to Saturday:       08:00 to 02:30 (Basement & Lower Ground Floor) 
 Monday to Sunday:                    08:00 to 23.30 (Roof Terrace) 
  
Seasonal Details: An additional hour when British Summertime commences 
Non-standard Timings: From the end of permitted hours on New Years Eve to the start of permitted 
hours on New Years Day. Permitted hours on Sundays immediately before Bank Holiday Mondays 
the same as permitted hours on Fridays and Saturdays. 
 
Exhibition of a Film 
 Monday to Sunday:                    08:00 to 01:00 (Ground, 1st, 2nd & 3rd Floors) 
 Sunday to Tuesday:                    08:00 to 01:00 (Basement & Lower Ground Floor) 
             Wednesday to Saturday:       08:00 to 02:30 (Basement & Lower Ground Floor) 
 Monday to Sunday:                    08:00 to 23.30 (Roof Terrace)  

page 38



Seasonal Details: An additional hour when British Summertime commences 
Non-standard Timings: From the end of permitted hours on New Years Eve to the start of permitted 
hours on New Years Day. Permitted hours on Sundays immediately before Bank Holiday Mondays 
the same as permitted hours on Fridays and Saturdays. 
 
Performance of Live Music 
 Monday to Sunday:                    08:00 to 01:00 (Ground, 1st, 2nd & 3rd Floors) 
 Sunday to Tuesday:                    08:00 to 01:00 (Basement & Lower Ground Floor) 
             Wednesday to Saturday:       08:00 to 02:30 (Basement & Lower Ground Floor) 
 Monday to Sunday:                    08:00 to 23.30 (Roof Terrace) 
  
Seasonal Details: An additional hour when British Summertime commences 
Non-standard Timings: From the end of permitted hours on New Years Eve to the start of permitted 
hours on New Years Day. Permitted hours on Sundays immediately before Bank Holiday Mondays 
the same as permitted hours on Fridays and Saturdays. 
 
Playing of Recorded Music 
 Monday to Sunday:                    08:00 to 01:00 (Ground, 1st, 2nd & 3rd Floors) 
 Sunday to Tuesday:                    08:00 to 01:00 (Basement & Lower Ground Floor) 
             Wednesday to Saturday:       08:00 to 02:30 (Basement & Lower Ground Floor) 
 Monday to Sunday:                    08:00 to 23.30 (Roof Terrace)  
 
Seasonal Details: An additional hour when British Summertime commences 
Non-standard Timings: From the end of permitted hours on New Years Eve to the start of permitted 
hours on New Years Day. Permitted hours on Sundays immediately before Bank Holiday Mondays 
the same as permitted hours on Fridays and Saturdays. 
 
Anything of a similar description to Live Music, Recorded Music or Performance of Dance 
 Monday to Sunday:                    08:00 to 01:00 (Ground, 1st, 2nd & 3rd Floors) 
 Sunday to Tuesday:                    08:00 to 01:00 (Basement & Lower Ground Floor) 
             Wednesday to Saturday:       08:00 to 02:30 (Basement & Lower Ground Floor) 
 Monday to Sunday:                    08:00 to 23.30 (Roof Terrace) 
 
Seasonal Details: An additional hour when British Summertime commences 
Non-standard Timings: From the end of permitted hours on New Years Eve to the start of permitted 
hours on New Years Day. Permitted hours on Sundays immediately before Bank Holiday Mondays 
the same as permitted hours on Fridays and Saturdays. 
 
Performance of a Play 
 Monday to Sunday:                    08:00 to 01:00 (Ground, 1st, 2nd & 3rd Floors) 
 Sunday to Tuesday:                    08:00 to 01:00 (Basement & Lower Ground Floor) 
             Wednesday to Saturday:       08:00 to 02:30 (Basement & Lower Ground Floor) 
 Monday to Sunday:                    08:00 to 23.30 (Roof Terrace)  
 
Seasonal Details: An additional hour when British Summertime commences 
Non-standard Timings: From the end of permitted hours on New Years Eve to the start of permitted 
hours on New Years Day. Permitted hours on Sundays immediately before Bank Holiday Mondays 
the same as permitted hours on Fridays and Saturdays. 
 
Late Night Refreshment 
 Monday to Tuesday:                    23:00 to 01:00 (All floors and Roof Terrace) 
 Wednesday to Saturday:       23:00 to 02:30 (All floors and Roof Terrace) 
 Sunday:                                 23:00 to 01:00 (All floors and Roof Terrace) 
Seasonal Details: An additional hour when British Summertime commences 
Non-standard Timings: From the end of permitted hours on New Years Eve to the start of permitted 
hours on New Years Day. Permitted hours on Sundays immediately before Bank Holiday Mondays  
 
Sale by Retail of Alcohol 
 Sale by Retail of Alcohol 
 Sunday to Saturday:                    08:00 to 01:00 (Ground, 1st, 2nd & 3rd Floors) 
 Sunday to Tuesday:                    08:00 to 01:00 (Basement   &   Lower Ground Floor) 
             Wednesday to Saturday:       08:00 to 02.30 (Basement   &   Lower Ground Floor) 
 Sunday to Thursday:                    08:00 to 21:30 (Roof Terrace) 

page 39



             Friday to Saturday:                           08:00 to 22:30 (Roof Terrace)  
  
Seasonal Details: An additional hour when British Summertime commences 
Non-standard Timings: From the end of permitted hours on New Years Eve to the start of permitted 
hours on New Years Day. Permitted hours on Sundays immediately before Bank Holiday Mondays 
 

 

The opening hours of the premises: 
 
Sunday to Tuesday:                      07:00 to 01:30 (Basement, Lower Ground Floor) 
Wednesday to Saturday                                  07:00 to 03:00 (Basement, lower Ground Floor) 
Sunday to Saturday                                  07:00 to 01:30 (Ground, 1st, 2nd, 3rd Floor) 
Monday to Sunday                                  07:00 to 23.30 (Roof Terrace) 
 

 

Where the licence authorises supplies of alcohol, whether these are on and/or off supplies: 
 
Alcohol is supplied for consumption both On and Off the Premises 
 

 

Name and (registered) address of holder of premises licence: 
 
Maison Estelle Limited 
Third Floor 
20 Old Bailey 
London 
EC4M 7AN 
 

 

Registered number of holder, for example company number, charity number (where 
applicable) 
 
10564926 
 

 

Name of designated premises supervisor where the premises licence authorises for the 
supply of alcohol: 
 
Name:                                Michael Thomas Ryan   
                                        

 

State whether access to the premises by children is restricted or prohibited: 
 
Restricted 
 

 
 
Date:   26 January 2023 
 
 
This licence has been authorised by Jessica Donovan on behalf of the Director - Public Protection 
and Licensing.   
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

 

 

page 40



Thomas & Thomas Partners LLP is a limited liability partnership registered in England & Wales under number OC363873.   A list of 
members is available for inspection at our registered office at 38a Monmouth Street, London WC2H 9EP.  Thomas & Thomas Partners 
LLP is regulated by the Solicitors Regulation Authority under number 561362. 

 

 

 

By email:  

25 May 2023 

Dear Sirs 

Maison Estelle, 6 Grafton Street - Licence Variation Application 23/01877/LIPV 

We act for the above Premises Licence holder and refer to your representation in respect of our client’s 
application.  Thank you for taking the time to comment on our client’s proposals. Our client would be 
grateful for the opportunity to discuss the matters raised in your letter.   

As you may know, our client and their acoustic consultant have been in contact with your client’s 
contractor and have made several requests to arrange for a noise impact assessment to be undertaken. 
Access to your client’s premises would allow the acoustic consultant to undertake proper readings, 
enabling them to comprehensively assess the matters raised in your letter and advise on any appropriate 
remedial action. As a result, your client’s cooperation with the sound tests would be much appreciated. 

We note that your letter has been sent on behalf of the company that owns the property.  It would be 
helpful to properly understand the frequency of stay, general arrangements and identity of those 
persons living/staying in the property.  This would provide our client, the acoustic consultant and the 
Licensing Authority the best possible opportunity to consider your client’s concerns and any action that 
may be required. Alternatively, or in any event, the matters raised in your letter will be considered 
further during the public Licensing Sub-Committee hearing to be scheduled by Westminster City Council. 

Thank you for your consideration of this letter.  We look forward to hearing from you. 

Yours faithfully 

Thomas & Thomas Partners LLP 
tel:  
email:  

Your ref: VD/nw 
Our ref: JS/ENN.1.1 

38a Monmouth Street 
London  WC2H 9EP 

tel: 020 7042 0410 
fax: 020 7379 6618 

Applicant Supporting Documents     Appendix 2

page 41



Big Sky Acoustics Ltd. Registered Office: 60 Frenze Road, Diss, Norfolk, United Kingdom, IP22 4PB. Registered in England & Wales Company No. 07651636

9

info@bigskyacoustics.co.uk

www.bigskyacoustics.co.uk

TECHNICAL MEMORANDUM

Project: Maison Estelle, 6 Grafton Street, London W1S 4EQ - site visit report

Reference: 23071138 Date: 5th September 2022

To: Thomas & Thomas From:

1. Introduction

The premises was inspected on Monday 5th September 2022 during the daytime. I am familiar with
the location and the surrounding streets and have carried out a number of noise surveys in the
area during the evening and into the night.

2. Building

The high sound area is the basement lounge of No 6. Sound insulation testing, by others1,
identified a good field performance of the sound insulation (better than designed and accepted for
planning2) between this area and the adjoining rooms in 5 Grafton Street.

3. Room acoustics

The interior design includes a luxurious scheme of soft furnishings, upholstered seating and
carpeted areas which increases the acoustic absorption in the space and enhances quality of sound
reproduction.

4. Sound system controls

The sound system is a high quality professional system installed by Marquee AV who are a long
established sound installer that I have worked with on many projects. The Control System is a Q-
SYS Core 510i Integrated Processor which is fully configurable. Each area in the premises is zoned
allowing individual control of loudspeakers so that level, and equalisation, can be adjusted. The Q-
SYS Core is programmed to include compression and limiting on all channels. As it is remotely
accessed via dedicated software and there are no end-user accessible controls it is entirely
tamper-proof by DJs or other unauthorised persons. This is a state-of-the-art method for
controlling, and limiting, a sound system as once a defined maximum level is set and locked in
software it cannot be overridden.

1 Hoare Lee LLP document ref LET-1006892-5A-DF-20171128
2 WCC 17/07355/FULL

page 42



Figure 1: Section through 5 and 6 Grafton Street showing sound insulation performances measured

5. Operational procedures

We briefly discussed management of patron ingress and egress and some enhancements to patron
dispersal procedures were being implemented.

6. Conclusions

The building is well designed and features a high-quality fully configurable sound system that has
been set and locked. There are a large number of variables in any professional sound system
allowing every element of the sound to be configurable. In the event of a complaint about noise
my recommendation is always to go to the room where the noise is being witnessed and assess
not just the level but also spectral content. With precision measurement and control the individual
frequencies can be tailored to ensure that the sound system is appropriately, and precisely,
controlled. The sound installer that commissioned the system has set these levels, and then
refined them in May 2022. I suggest if any further changes are required then access is arranged
for the adjacent property and I meet with the sound installer and neighbours in order to set
maximum limit levels from the noise sensitive receptor rooms. This will then be set, and locked, in
the Q-SYS Core software.

page 43



Dispersal Policy – Maison Estelle 6 Grafton Street 
 

 
1 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Maison Estelle Private Members’ Club 

6 Grafton Street 
 

 
 
 

 
Dispersal Policy 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

page 44



Dispersal Policy – Maison Estelle 6 Grafton Street 
 

 
2 

 
 
 
 

Location 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

page 45



Dispersal Policy – Maison Estelle 6 Grafton Street 
 

 

 

1 Dispersal Policy 
 
1.1 The objective of the Dispersal Policy is to ensure a quiet, controlled and swift dispersal of 

members and guests. 

 
1.2 The Dispersal Policy promotes a professional and responsible management of members and 

guests as they leave to ensure they make their journey home without any adverse impact on 

local residents. 

 
1.3 It is essential that the dispersal procedures are followed in conjunction with the four licensing 

objectives: 

 
1.3.1 The prevention of crime and disorder 

1.3.2 Public safety 

1.3.3 The prevention of public nuisance 

1.3.4 The protection of children from harm 

 

1.4 A good dispersal plan will help prevent potential noise complaints from residents, help reduce 

guest incidents, and help prevent anti-social behaviour. This promotes good neighbourly relations 

in the local community. 

 

1.5 Rules relating to dispersal are included in the Members’ Rules and enforced to ensure compliance. 

 

Entrances and Exits 
 
1.6 The main entrance and exit is situated on Grafton Street.  This is managed by reception staff 

inside at all times and with a doorperson/greeter at the entrance.  

 

1.7 At peak periods, additional staff and SIA supervisors are employed to assist with the quiet 

dispersal of customers and to monitor taxis and parking.  

 
1.8 Due to having a one-way road in front of the Club, it is important that the Club security team (as 

they have duty to care for guests and members after visiting the Club) make sure that guests do 

not stand in the road or disturb the flow of traffic. 

 

 

 

page 46



Dispersal Policy – Maison Estelle 6 Grafton Street 
 

 

Transport 
 

1.9 Members and guests arrive and depart by various modes of transport. Members and guests 

are welcomed straight into the Club by the doorperson and members of staff to avoid queuing 

or loitering outside. 

 
1.10 When arriving by private car, members and drivers where necessary are reminded not to leave 

engines running, to keep conversation to a minimum and avoid slamming car doors. 

 
1.11 The Club is also well serviced by public transport links, as set out below. Staff are familiar with 

the transport links so they can advise guests where required. 

 
Tube 

 

1.11.1 The following tube stations are located within walking distance of the Club and now 

with the benefit of the extending night-tube times: 

 
1.11.1.1 Green Park Underground Station. 

 
1.11.1.2 Hyde Park Corner Underground Station. 

 
1.11.1.3 Piccadilly Circus Underground Station. 

 
1.11.1.4 Bond Street Underground Station. 

 
1.11.2 Where necessary members and guests are given directions to the relevant station 

and reminded to reach the station as quietly and as quickly as possible when they 

leave. 

 
1.12 Taxi 

 

1.12.1 Black cabs are readily available right through the day and night in Mayfair. Members 

and guests are encouraged to go directly into a waiting cab when leaving the Club. 

1.12.2 Any member wishing to leave the Club by taxi / private hire vehicle is required to book a 

taxi in advance and is required to remain in the Club until their vehicle has arrived.  

1.12.3 SIA door supervisors act as a traffic stewards at busy times to ensure that all the above 

rules are adhered to and that no traffic is built up by members accessing or departing the 

Club. 

page 47



Dispersal Policy – Maison Estelle 6 Grafton Street 
 

 

1.12.4 Staff assist members and guests calling a taxi if required. 

1.12.5 Other forms of app-based taxis may also be used by members and guests. Members and guests 

can wait inside the Club until their taxi has arrived to ensure a quick and quiet exit. 

 

Closing Procedure 

 
1.13 Management controls are implemented to ensure that the closing procedure has no adverse 

impact on local residents. The procedure facilitates a quick and quiet closure of the Club. 

 
1.14 Management controls include: 

 
1.14.1 Ensuring all members and guests are off the Club premises by the authorised closing 

times. There are no exceptions to this rule whatsoever. 

 
1.14.2 A prompt clean and clear up of the Club as soon as possible after closure. 

 
1.14.3 Employees are required to leave the Club quickly and quietly, at all times following 

the Dispersal Policy set out above. 

 
1.14.4 Employees are not permitted to loiter outside the Club or smoke in the vicinity after 

closing. 

 
1.14.5 The pavement is swept and cleaned every day. 
 

1.15 A ‘soft closure’ procedure is in place at the Club. This is designed to close the premises slowly and 

thus to encourage a more even dispersal rather than everyone being asked to leave at the same 

time. This in turn seeks to minimise the potential for noise and anti-social behaviour, which can occur 

when larger numbers of people leave a venue at the same time. 

 

1.16 When the music has been turned off and the lighting turned on, guests are asked to leave the 

premises.  

 

Internal Dispersal 

 
1.17 On busier evenings the security team encourages a slow gradual dispersal to discourage guests and 

page 48



Dispersal Policy – Maison Estelle 6 Grafton Street 
 

 

members leaving in large groups. This is achieved by Security officers tactically and kindly inviting 

guests or members to make their way out when it is correct to do so. 

 

External Dispersal 

 

1.18 In the event of larger groups leaving the Club security officers proactively direct guests to prevent 

large groups loitering, and also assist and manage the taxi pick up process. Guests and members 

loitering may be doing so because they are unable to decide or easily access the information they 

require. Often, they will disperse when they are given this information. Many customers will move 

on if they can be helped to achieve one of the following outcomes: 

 

1.18.1 How to get home? 

1.18.2 Where can they go next?  

1.18.3 Where is the nearest transport link? 

1.18.4 Where can they get some food? 

 

1.19 The Club security team and front of house team will follow the following policies and procedures: 

 

1.19.1 Security Presence - Door Supervisors are easily identifiable. SIA Door Supervisors are 

required to display their SIA Licence, and the use of a clear uniform will provide greater 

awareness of their presence. 

 

1.19.2 Conduct - Security officers will remind guests who are leaving to do so quietly and 

respectfully.  

 
1.19.3 Failure to Comply - If guests have been asked not to assemble or loiter outside the premises 

once they have left, and if they are still doing so, they will be politely reminded that those 

who do not comply may be refused entry next time, and in future potential loss of 

membership.  

 
1.19.4 Littering - throughout the evening and after closure the housekeeping will ensure the front 

of the property is kept clear of rubbish and litter. 

page 49



Report of Observations at 

Maison Estelle 

6, Grafton Street, W1S 4EQ 

By 

, Independent Licensing Consultant. 

 

Introduction. 

1.  of Thomas and Thomas LLP has instructed me to conduct observations 

in the vicinity of Maison Estelle to observe the operation of the premises, the 

management of the vicinity by Door Supervisors employed at the premises and the 

dispersal from the premises. 

 

2. The private members club currently has permitted hours that are staggered across the 

week, with the later hours authorised on Wednesday to Saturday on the lower floors 

only. It is proposed to apply to regularise the later hours across all floors from Monday 

to Saturday with 2.30 am for licensable activities across all floors to cease and 3.00 am 

premises close. A Temporary Event Notice (TEN) is in place for the night of the 16th of 

March to reflect these proposed hours and to assess any impact these hours have on 

the promotion of the licensing objectives. 

 
Summary of Expertise –  

 

3. I retired from the police service on 2nd November 2012 having completed 31 years 

exemplary service with the Metropolitan Police in London. Between January 2012 and 

my retirement, I was employed as the Chief Inspector in charge of licensing for the 

London Olympic Games 2012. In this role I headed up a team of officers with 

page 50



responsibility for supervision of licensing compliance at all the Olympic venues, 

including the Olympic Park. In addition, I was responsible for ensuring that any 

associated events were properly licensed, sufficiently staffed and operated in 

accordance with the licensing legislation and best practice to ensure the safe and 

effective delivery of the Olympic Games. In addition to leading my team I visited and 

worked with both the Olympic Park management and many other venues, reviewing 

their policies and procedures and ensuring that the Games were delivered safely and 

securely. The success of this operation not only protected the reputation of the MPS 

but provided positive benefits for the profile of the MPS and the United Kingdom. I 

have been awarded an Assistant Commissioners Commendation for this work. 

 

4. Prior to this role, between Jan 2002 and January 2012, I was employed first as an 

Inspector and then as a Chief Inspector on the MPS Clubs and Vice Unit (Now SCD9 

Serious and Organised crime command). My responsibilities over this period focussed 

on licensing and included day to day supervision of the licensing team that had a 

London wide remit to support the Boroughs with licensing activity. Providing both 

Overt and Covert support for policing problem licensed premises across London. My 

team worked with premises when licensing issues were identified to address these 

problems through the use of action plans in order to raise their standards. Where this 

failed, I would support the Boroughs with evidence for use at review hearings if 

required. 

 

 

5. I devised and implemented the MPS strategy 'Safe and Sound' which sought to 

improve the safety of customers at licensed premises by reducing violent and other 

crime, in particular gun crime and the most serious violence. I also developed the 

Promoters Forum and risk assessment process, together these initiatives contributed 

to an overall reduction in violence in London of 5% and of the most serious violence 

and gun crime at licensed premises by 20% whilst I was there. 

 

6. From 2004 until 2008 my role included representing the MPS and ACPO licensing lead 

both in London and nationally. In this role I developed key partnerships with industry, 

page 51



NGOs and Government departments in order to improve the standards at licensed 

premises. I sat on the British Institute of Innkeeping working party and helped develop 

the national training for Door Supervisors. I worked with the national regulator the 

Security Industry Authority to successfully introduce the new regime under the Private 

Security Industry Act 2001 within London. I sat on Government working parties and 

worked closely with the alcohol harm reduction team on identifying best practice and 

ensuring this was used both within London and nationally by police and local 

authorities. I worked with Government on the drafting of SEV legislation and gave 

evidence to the House of Commons Select Committee in 2009 on the impact of 

premises providing sexual entertainment. 

 

 

7. I was involved with Best Bar None, a national voluntary scheme of accreditation for 

safe licensed premises, for a number of years and successfully helped a number of 

boroughs implement the initiative. I was a trained Best Bar none assessor and until my 

retirement sat on the Board for Best Bar None in the Royal Borough of Kensington and 

Chelsea. I was also a trained assessor for Purple Flag, the national voluntary awards 

scheme for safe, diverse and accessible town centres. For the five years prior to my 

retirement, I was responsible for licensing of the Notting Hill Carnival, the largest 

street carnival in Europe. During this time, I contributed to a reduction in violence 

overall at the Carnival and delivered increased seizures of illegal alcohol, reduction of 

unlicensed alcohol sales and a reduction in alcohol related violence. In addition to the 

above I attended internal MPS training and qualification courses, I am trained in 

conducting health and safety risk assessments and hold the National Certificate for 

Licensing Practitioners, issued by the British Institute of Inn keeping. 

 

8. Following my retirement, I established ‘Clubsafe Services Ltd’ to provide independent 

compliance support and advice for premises and events requiring a local authority 

licence. Since then, I have provided evidence gathering services, advice and support 

to a broad range of licensed premises on a variety of issues, including crime and 

disorder, street drinking, rough sleepers and age-related product issues. I have also 

provided support to bars and shops at events such as Nottinghill Carnival and provided 

page 52



support and advice for high profile clubs such as Fabric in London. This work has 

involved premises that benefit from a variety of local authority licences including 

alcohol on and off licences, betting premises licences and late-night refreshment. I 

regularly provide expert independent witness evidence at both local authority and 

appeal court hearings. 

 
Observations. 

 

9. I conducted observations in the vicinity of the premises on the night of Thursday the 

16th of March 2023 from 22.00 hours until the premises closed at 03.00 on Friday 17th 

March. The weather was mild, dry and clear. There are extensive building works in 

Grafton Street with some additional parking restrictions and road works in the 

surrounding streets. 

 
10. On my arrival outside the premises at about 22.00 hours there were three smartly 

dressed males outside the premises who appeared to be door supervisors and/or door 

hosts. Two were mainly at the entrance to the premises and one was deployed on the 

pavement and immediate vicinity to manage customers and vehicles as they arrived. 

They greeted customers on arrival and admitted them quickly to the premises. The 

vicinity of the premises was quiet and the premises  entrance was quiet with 

customers arriving in small, orderly, groups and being admitted quickly into the 

premises. 

 
11. Most customers arrived in cabs or private cars and were dropped off nearby or 

outside. A few parked in the vicinity although parking is limited, and this is 

exacerbated by the present building works. Grafton Street had a steady flow of 

vehicles and pedestrians along it who were unconnected to the premises and the 

premises had little impact on this traffic. Walking in Grafton street past the premises 

there was no audible noise from the premises. I understand that the roof terrace was 

in use but there was no noise from there audible at street level. 

 
12. The premises continued to operate in this fashion with a slow but steady flow of 

customers arriving and leaving in a quiet and orderly fashion. Occasionally a cab or 

page 53



private car would stop outside to drop off or pick up customers and temporarily 

obstruct the road but this did not cause any problems as it was brief and traffic was 

light. 

 
13. By about 00.15 it was busier outside the premises with customers leaving and with a 

steady flow of pedestrians apparently making their way  from other premises in the 

area  along Grafton Street towards Dover Street and Berkely Square and with vehicles 

driving past. 

 
14. By 00.45 there was a steady egress from the premises with fewer people arriving. The 

area generally remained quite busy with pedestrians and traffic and on occasion 

vehicles stopping outside the premises held up traffic briefly, but this did not appear 

to cause any issues. Many were black cabs and private hire cars and while a few sought 

to park nearby most drove off. 

 
15. By 01.30 it was busier outside with groups leaving and some still arriving. While many 

customers appeared to wait inside the premises until their vehicle arrived outside, 

speeding up their departure from the vicinity, some of those leaving did loiter outside 

and on occasion voices were audible above the background noise, although it never 

reached the point where I consider that it would be intrusive in nearby premises. I did 

not observe any drunkenness or disorderly behaviour. 

 
16. It was also noticeable as the evening wore on that some drivers left their engines 

running and some manoeuvred outside the premises attempting to park and/or wait 

close by for customers. The door supervisor/host who was on the pavement outside 

the premises did speak to some of the drivers and on occasion directed them to pull 

in but I did not see him challenge any of the people who waited outside or encourage 

them to move away from the premises. 

 
17. By 01.45 is was less busy outside the premises, while there were a few cars coming 

and going for customers there was more stopping space available outside and vehicles 

were able to wait discretely and then move off. Most customers left the area quickly 

but I did observe occasional small groups that loitered nearby waiting for friends or 

page 54



transport and again the door supervisors could have been more pro-active in 

encouraging them to leave the area or to wait inside the premises. 

 
18. Between  02.00 and 02.30 there was a busy period with what appeared to be the 

remaining customers leaving the premises. It was orderly with only the occasional 

voice heard above the background noise and I did not observe any drunkenness or 

disorder. The door supervisors remained outside the entrance with one on the 

pavement although there was limited interaction with leaving customers once on the 

pavement. Grafton Street itself had a slow stream of vehicles heading to the premises 

and through traffic and pedestrians and there was little to be heard from the premises 

above the background ‘London noise’. 

 
19. After 02.30 the area generally quietened down with less traffic and fewer pedestrians 

and the premises was quiet with only the occasional person leaving. The door 

supervisors remained outside but there were few cars arriving or parked and few 

people about. At about 02.50 the premises appeared closed, the door supervisors 

were outside and preparing to  leave. At 03.00 they appeared to leave the door and I 

left the area. 

 
Conclusion. 

 
20. I found that the premises had little impact on the surrounding area at any time during 

the evening. Customers arriving were dropped off nearby and quickly admitted to the 

premises. Most appeared to arrive and leave in cabs and private hire cars and while 

some of these did attempt to wait and/or park in the vicinity most left quite quickly. 

On occasion there was brief obstruction of the road when customers arrived or left 

but this appeared to have little impact on the road. There was a door supervisor/ 

steward who was managing the traffic to an extent, this could be enhanced by a more 

pro-active approach to both vehicles and leaving customers. 

 

21. I did not observe any drunken or disorderly behaviour from customers arriving or 

leaving the premises. A small number waited in the vicinity for transport when leaving 

and occasionally I could hear a raised voice but this was barely audible above the 

page 55



London background noise. This could be minimised further by ensuring customers 

remain inside until their transport arrives and those that leave on foot do so quickly 

and move away from the vicinity. 

 
22. Smoking areas and customers smoking close to premises is often a cause of noise and 

nuisance at licensed premises. At Maison Estelle members and guests are permitted 

to smoke on the roof terrace during permitted hours and this reduces the opportunity 

for noise and nuisance on the street. I observed only one or two people smoking in 

the vicinity of the premises and no noise or nuisance was generated. Drinks are not 

permitted to be taken outside by those smoking which reduces the potential for noise 

and loitering in the street. 

 
23. There is an historical dispersal policy as part of the previous operational management 

plan for the premises when it was proposed as Gleneagles private members’ club. This 

is a comprehensive guide and there would be value in updating this, with particular 

reference to the dispersal policy, and implementing it for the present operation. 

 
24. Overall I found the vicinity of the premises to be well managed with a high level of 

staffing and it had little impact on the surrounding area at any time that I conducted 

my observations, despite the current building works. I recommend updating the 

operations and dispersal policy and I am confident that, should the premises be 

permitted to extend the hours of the basement and lower ground floor to the whole 

of the premises, this will not have an adverse impact on the promotion of the licensing 

objectives. 

 

Independent Licensing Consultant, 

18/03/2023. 

 

 

page 56



Report of Observations at 

Maison Estelle 

6, Grafton Street, W1S 4EQ 

By 

, Independent Licensing Consultant. 

 

Introduction. 

1.  of Thomas and Thomas LLP has instructed me to conduct observations 

at Maison Estelle and in the vicinity in order to observe the operation of the premises, 

the management of the vicinity by Door Supervisors employed at the premises and 

the dispersal of customers from the premises when it closes.  

 

2. The private members club currently has permitted hours that are staggered across the 

premises, with the later hours authorised on Wednesday to Saturday on the lower 

ground floor and basement only. It is proposed to apply to regularise the later hours 

across all floors from Monday to Saturday with 2.30 am for licensable activities across 

all floors to cease and 3.00 am premises close. 

 
Summary of Expertise –  

 

3. I retired from the police service on 2nd November 2012 having completed 31 years 

exemplary service with the Metropolitan Police in London. Between January 2012 and 

my retirement, I was employed as the Chief Inspector in charge of licensing for the 

London Olympic Games 2012. In this role I headed up a team of officers with 

responsibility for supervision of licensing compliance at all the Olympic venues, 

including the Olympic Park. In addition, I was responsible for ensuring that any 

page 57



associated events were properly licensed, sufficiently staffed and operated in 

accordance with the licensing legislation and best practice to ensure the safe and 

effective delivery of the Olympic Games. In addition to leading my team I visited and 

worked with both the Olympic Park management and many other venues, reviewing 

their policies and procedures and ensuring that the Games were delivered safely and 

securely. The success of this operation not only protected the reputation of the MPS 

but provided positive benefits for the profile of the MPS and the United Kingdom. I 

have been awarded an Assistant Commissioners Commendation for this work. 

 

4. Prior to this role, between Jan 2002 and January 2012, I was employed first as an 

Inspector and then as a Chief Inspector on the MPS Clubs and Vice Unit (Now SCD9 

Serious and Organised crime command). My responsibilities over this period focussed 

on licensing and included day to day supervision of the licensing team that had a 

London wide remit to support the Boroughs with licensing activity. Providing both 

Overt and Covert support for policing problem licensed premises across London. My 

team worked with premises when licensing issues were identified to address these 

problems through the use of action plans in order to raise their standards. Where this 

failed, I would support the Boroughs with evidence for use at review hearings if 

required. 

 

 

5. I devised and implemented the MPS strategy 'Safe and Sound' which sought to 

improve the safety of customers at licensed premises by reducing violent and other 

crime, in particular gun crime and the most serious violence. I also developed the 

Promoters Forum and risk assessment process, together these initiatives contributed 

to an overall reduction in violence in London of 5% and of the most serious violence 

and gun crime at licensed premises by 20% whilst I was there. 

 

6. From 2004 until 2008 my role included representing the MPS and ACPO licensing lead 

both in London and nationally. In this role I developed key partnerships with industry, 

NGOs and Government departments in order to improve the standards at licensed 

premises. I sat on the British Institute of Innkeeping working party and helped develop 

page 58



the national training for Door Supervisors. I worked with the national regulator the 

Security Industry Authority to successfully introduce the new regime under the Private 

Security Industry Act 2001 within London. I sat on Government working parties and 

worked closely with the alcohol harm reduction team on identifying best practice and 

ensuring this was used both within London and nationally by police and local 

authorities. I worked with Government on the drafting of SEV legislation and gave 

evidence to the House of Commons Select Committee in 2009 on the impact of 

premises providing sexual entertainment. 

 

 

7. I was involved with Best Bar None, a national voluntary scheme of accreditation for 

safe licensed premises, for a number of years and successfully helped a number of 

boroughs implement the initiative. I was a trained Best Bar none assessor and until my 

retirement sat on the Board for Best Bar None in the Royal Borough of Kensington and 

Chelsea. I was also a trained assessor for Purple Flag, the national voluntary awards 

scheme for safe, diverse and accessible town centres. For the five years prior to my 

retirement, I was responsible for licensing of the Notting Hill Carnival, the largest 

street carnival in Europe. During this time, I contributed to a reduction in violence 

overall at the Carnival and delivered increased seizures of illegal alcohol, reduction of 

unlicensed alcohol sales and a reduction in alcohol related violence. In addition to the 

above I attended internal MPS training and qualification courses, I am trained in 

conducting health and safety risk assessments and hold the National Certificate for 

Licensing Practitioners, issued by the British Institute of Inn keeping. 

 

8. Following my retirement, I established ‘Clubsafe Services Ltd’ to provide independent 

compliance support and advice for premises and events requiring a local authority 

licence. Since then, I have provided evidence gathering services, advice and support 

to a broad range of licensed premises on a variety of issues, including crime and 

disorder, street drinking, rough sleepers and age-related product issues. I have also 

provided support to bars and shops at events such as Nottinghill Carnival and provided 

support and advice for high profile clubs such as Fabric in London. This work has 

involved premises that benefit from a variety of local authority licences including 

page 59



alcohol on and off licences, betting premises licences and late-night refreshment. I 

regularly provide expert independent witness evidence at both local authority and 

appeal court hearings. 

 
Observations. 

 

9. I conducted observations in the vicinity of the premises on the night of Friday the 23rd 

of June 2023 from around 22.30 hours until the premises closed at about 03.00 on 

Saturday 24th June 2023. The weather was very warm, dry and clear. There are 

extensive building works in Grafton Street with some additional parking restrictions 

and road works in the surrounding streets. The area around the premises was very 

busy with the nearby pubs and bars busy including customers drinking outside. 

 

10. Walking down Grafton Street to Dover Street, Hay Hill and Berkeley Street the 

pavements and roads were very busy and all the bars, restaurants and pubs were 

crowded and busy with customers spilling out onto the streets. I walked up Bruton 

Lane to the rear of Maison Estelle, Bruton Lane was quiet and the rear access to 

Maison Estelle was quiet and appeared closed. I walked up Bruton Lane a number of 

times during the night and it was quiet every time and the access to Maison Estelle 

did not appear to be used. 

 
11. In the Hay Street and Berkely Street area in particular, in addition to the customers of 

the various premises there, were a significant number of people selling flowers, 

cigarettes and touting for customers for sex and drugs. Pedi-cabs cruised the area with 

music blaring from them and often rode along the pavements and went down the 

various one-way roads the wrong way. I did not see any signs of enforcement from 

police or other authorities in connection with this. 

 
12. In comparison Grafton Street outside Maison Estelle was fairly quiet on my arrival 

outside the premises at about 22.30 hours. It is a one-way street  past the premises 

and with the exception of the pedi-cabs weaving their way through the traffic this was 

observed. There is parking available, and some customers appeared to park close by 

page 60



while others arrived in chauffer driven cars and private hire cars. On occasion these 

did stop close by to drop off and/or pick up customers but with the generally busy 

streets and slow-moving traffic this did not have a significant impact on traffic flow. 

 
13. There were three smartly dressed males outside the premises, two appeared to be 

door supervisors and one a door host. The door supervisors were mainly at the 

entrance to the premises opening the door and ushering customers inside while the 

host was mainly on the pavement and in the immediate vicinity managing customers 

and vehicles as they arrived and ensuring they were admitted quickly to the premises. 

There was a small group of what appeared to be customers smoking to the right of 

the entrance and other people on the pavement making their way past the premises 

who appeared unconnected to it. 

 
14. In Grafton street there was no music or noise from the premises audible above the 

ambient noise in the area. On occasion there was music audible in the area from 

vehicles passing by with open windows and predominantly from the pedicabs that all 

appeared to have loud music systems in addition to the bright flashing lights attracting 

attention. There is a smoking area at the premises in the basement light well and I 

could not hear any noise coming from this area. 

 
15. At about 01.20 I went to the premises and met the manager Mr. Sean Coogan who 

showed me around the premises. The roof terrace and upper floors were closed as it 

was past the 01.00 hours closing time. As with the whole premises these floors are 

decorated to a high standard and are divided into small, intimate areas comprising of 

lounges and a variety of dining areas including a fine dining restaurant and open 

kitchen style area. All the rooms are mainly set out to seating, around dining tables or 

in a comfortable lounge setting and with table service; I understand that this food led, 

and lounge style is going to continue under the proposed extended hours. There is a 

glass roof over the roof terrace that slides over to enclose the area. 

 
16. The lower ground floor and basement were operating in a nightclub style, again 

divided into a number of smaller areas and with bars and decorated and fitted out to 

a high standard. There were SIA door supervisors present on each floor and further 

page 61



security patrolling. The areas were busy but not overcrowded and the atmosphere 

was good with people dancing. I did not see any drunkenness. 

 
17. On the ground floor by the entrance there is a large reception area where customers 

arriving confirm their membership status and those leaving were waiting for cars and 

cabs to arrive outside which enabled them to then leave the premises, access their 

transport and leave the area quickly. There is a smoking area in the basement light 

well which appeared busy, but I did not notice any noise breakout from outside the 

building. I asked Mr Coogan about the operation of the premises while he showed me 

around and I was impressed with his knowledge of the premises and licence conditions 

and understanding of potential issues. 

 
18. From my discussions with Mr. Coogan I understand that the premises operates 

exclusively as a members club with a maximum of two guests permitted for each 

member. New members have to be proposed and seconded by existing members and 

ID is checked when applying so all members are identified. Details of all guests are 

obtained when they arrive. Mr. Coogan was clearly familiar with many members as 

we walked the premises and polite but firm when, for example, a member asked for 

access to one of the upper floors that was closed. Moving around the closed floors all 

were locked and the head of security attended on request to permit us access to view 

them. 

 
19. Most of the restaurant tables are pre-booked, although member walk-ups are 

permitted when  there are tables available. The upper floors that are not set out for 

restaurant service are comfortable lounges with seating and table service and it is 

proposed that this will continue, should the present application be permitted, and 

they will not become extensions to the existing club style premises on the lower and 

basement floors, but will be an area for members to relax and for those from the club 

to wind down prior to leaving, assisting the gradual dispersal from the premises. It has 

also been agreed that the maximum premises capacity after 01.00 hours will be 425, 

excluding staff, and this will also assist with the gradual dispersal. 

 

page 62



20. I was outside the premises observing egress from about 02.00 hours. The wider area 

generally continued to be busy and there was a steady exit of customers from the 

premises with no new arrivals seen. Bruton Lane to the rear remained quiet and I did 

not see anyone leaving from there. Many customers appeared to leave into waiting 

private cars or cabs and Ubers while others made their way away on foot. Grafton 

Street was busy with through traffic coming from Albemarle Street, around past the 

premises and into Hay Hill and the busy Berkely Street area. 

 
Conclusion. 

 
21. Located in a busy, largely commercial area, I found that the premises had little impact 

on the surrounding area at any time during the evening. Customers arriving were 

dropped off nearby and quickly admitted to the premises. Most appeared to arrive 

and leave in cabs and private hire cars and while some of these did attempt to wait 

and/or park in the vicinity most left quite quickly. On occasion there was brief 

obstruction of the road when customers arrived or left but this appeared to have little 

impact on the road. There was a door supervisor/host who was managing those 

arriving and leaving the premises. 

 

22. I did not observe any drunken or disorderly behaviour from customers arriving or 

leaving the premises. Most appeared to arrange transport while inside the premises, 

or to walk away when leaving presumably to access transport further away or to move 

on to hotels or other premises. A small number waited in the vicinity for transport 

when leaving but I did not see any noise or nuisance caused. 

 
23. Smoking areas and customers smoking close to premises is often a cause of noise and 

nuisance at licensed premises. At Maison Estelle members and guests are permitted 

to smoke on the roof terrace during permitted hours although this was closed during 

my observations. There is also a basement light-well smoking area which did not 

appear to have any impact on the street or noise levels. I observed only a small 

number of people smoking in the vicinity of the premises and no noise or nuisance 

page 63



was generated. Drinks are not permitted to be taken outside by those smoking which 

reduces the potential for noise and loitering in the street. 

 
24. There is an historical dispersal policy as part of the previous operational management 

plan for the premises when it was proposed as Gleneagles private members’ club. This 

is a comprehensive guide and there would be value in updating this, with particular 

reference to the dispersal, proposed changes to the hours and the reduced maximum 

premises capacity after 01.00 hours of 425, excluding staff, which will aid gradual 

dispersal. 

 
25. Overall I found the premises and immediate vicinity outside to be well managed with 

a high level of staffing and it had little impact on the surrounding area at any time that 

I conducted my observations, despite the current building works. I recommend 

updating the operations and dispersal policy and I am confident that, should the 

premises be permitted to extend the hours of the basement and lower ground floor 

to the whole of the premises, and taking account of the reduced capacity after 01.00 

hours to 425 excluding staff, this will not have an adverse impact on the promotion of 

the licensing objectives. 

 

Independent Licensing Consultant, 

14/07/2023. 

 

 

page 64



Appendix 3 

 
Licence & Appeal History  

 

 
Application 
 

 
Details of Application 

 
Date Determined 

 
Decision 

17/09669/LIPN New premises licence 
application 

23.10.2017 Granted under 
delegated authority 

21/07328/LIPDPS Vary DPS 13.08.2021 Granted under 
delegated authority 

21/07496/LIPVM Minor variation to: 
Update the layout of the 
premises. 
Remove works 
conditions Update the 
name of the premises to 
'6 Grafton Street’ 
No changes to the 
capacity, hours or 
activities. 
 

18.08.2021 Granted under 
delegated authority 

21/11719/LIPRW Removal of works 
conditions 

21.10.2021 Granted under 
delegated authority 

22/00945/LIPV Full variation application 
to vary the permitted 
hours for licensable 
activities on the Roof 
Terrace only until 23:30 
Monday to Sunday 

02.03.2022 Granted under 
delegated authority 

22/11947/LIPVM Minor Variation 
application to 
amalgamate existing 
capacity condition 34 & 
35.  
The application does not 
propose any changes to 
licensable activities, 
permitted hours or any 
other licence conditions. 

11.01.2023 Granted under 
delegated authority 

 

page 65



 

Application Details of Application 
 

Date of event Decision 

23/03387/LITENP Temporary Event Notice 
for 65 persons on the 
Lower Ground floor until 
04:00 hours. 
 

09.06.2023 Event allowed to 
proceed 

23/03386/LITENP Temporary Event Notice 
for 135 persons on the 
Ground Floor until 04:00 

09.06.2023 Event allowed to 
proceed 

23/03385/LITENP Temporary Event Notice 
For 65 persons on the 4th 
floor. 

08.06.2023 Event allowed to 
proceed 

23/03383/LITENP Temporary Event Notice 
for 135 persons on the 1st 
Floor until 04:00 
(regulated entertainment 
and LNR only) 

09.06.2023 Event allowed to 
proceed 

23/03382/LITENP Temporary Event Notice 
for 170 persons on the 
basement Floor 02:30 to  
04:00 

09.06.2023 Event allowed to 
proceed 

23/03389/LITENP Temporary Event Notice 
For 100 persons on the 
3rd floor. 

09.06.2023 Event allowed to 
proceed 

23/03388/LITENP Temporary Event Notice 
For 100 persons on the 
2nd floor. 

09.06.2023 Event allowed to 
proceed 

23/01248/LITENP Temporary Event Notice 
Private Members Only 
Event - no general 
members of the public. 
120 persons until 02:30 on 
the ground floor 

17.03.2023 Event allowed to 
proceed 

23/01246/LITENP Temporary Event Notice 
For 60 persons on the 4th 
floor. Private Members 
Only Event - no general 
members of the public 

16.03.2023 Event allowed to 
proceed 

23/00088/LITENP Temporary Event Notice 
200 person in the 
basement 01:00 to 03:00 

13.02.2023 Event allowed to 
proceed 

22/11555/LITENP Temporary Event Notice 
220 person in Basement, 
Ground, First and Second 
Floors for annual 
Christmas Party 

16.12.2023 Event allowed to 
proceed 

22/07179/LITENN Temporary Event Notice 
for 60 persons. 

05.08.2022 Event allowed to 
proceed 

22/05298/LITENP Temporary Event Notice 
for 65 persons on the 4th 
Floor terrace. 

22.06.2022 Event allowed to 
proceed 

 
 
There is no appeal history for the premises. 

page 66



Appendix 4 

 
CONDITIONS CONSISTENT WITH THE OPERATING SCHEDULE AND CONDITIONS 
PROPOSED BY A PARTY TO THE HEARING  
 
 
When determining an application for a new premises licence under the provisions of the 
Licensing Act 2003, the licensing authority must, unless it decides to reject the application, grant 
the licence subject to the conditions which are indicated as mandatory in this schedule. 
 
At a hearing the licensing authority may, in addition, and having regard to any representations 
received, grant the licence subject to such conditions which are consistent with the operating 
schedule submitted by the applicant as part of their application, or alter or omit these conditions, 
or add any new condition to such extent as the licensing authority considers appropriate for the 
promotion of the licensing objectives. 
 
This schedule lists those conditions which are consistent with the operating schedule, or 
proposed as appropriate for the promotion of the licensing objectives by a responsible authority 
or an interested party as indicated. These conditions have not been submitted by the licensing 
service but reflect the positions of the applicant, responsible authority or interested party and 
have not necessarily been agreed 
 
Conditions: On Current Licence -  
 
Mandatory: 
 
1. No supply of alcohol may be made at a time when there is no designated premises 

supervisor in respect of this licence. 
 
2. No supply of alcohol may be made at a time when the designated premises supervisor 

does not hold a personal licence or the personal licence is suspended. 
 
3. Every supply of alcohol under this licence must be made or authorised by a person who 

holds a personal licence. 
 
4.          (1)  The responsible person must ensure that staff on relevant premises do not carry 

out, arrange or participate in any irresponsible promotions in relation to the 
premises. 

 
(2)  In this paragraph, an irresponsible promotion means any one or more of the 

following activities, or substantially similar activities, carried on for the purpose of 
encouraging the sale or supply of alcohol for consumption on the premises— 

 
(a)  games or other activities which require or encourage, or are designed to require 

or encourage, individuals to; 
 

(i)  drink a quantity of alcohol within a time limit (other than to drink alcohol 
sold or supplied on the premises before the cessation of the period in 
which the responsible person is authorised to sell or supply alcohol), or 

(ii)  drink as much alcohol as possible (whether within a time limit or 
otherwise); 

 
(b)  provision of unlimited or unspecified quantities of alcohol free or for a fixed or 

discounted fee to the public or to a group defined by a particular characteristic in 
a manner which carries a significant risk of undermining a licensing objective; 

 

page 67



(c)  provision of free or discounted alcohol or any other thing as a prize to encourage 
or reward the purchase and consumption of alcohol over a period of 24 hours or 
less in a manner which carries a significant risk of undermining a licensing 
objective; 

 
(d)  selling or supplying alcohol in association with promotional posters or flyers on, 

or in the vicinity of, the premises which can reasonably be considered to 
condone, encourage or glamorise anti-social behaviour or to refer to the effects 
of drunkenness in any favourable manner; 

 
 (e) dispensing alcohol directly by one person into the mouth of another (other than 

where that other person is unable to drink without assistance by reason of a 
disability). 

 
5.  The responsible person must ensure that free potable water is provided on request to 

customers where it is reasonably available. 
 
6.          (1)  The premises licence holder or club premises certificate holder must ensure that 

an age verification policy is adopted in respect of the premises in relation to the 
sale or supply of alcohol. 

 
(2)  The designated premises supervisor in relation to the premises licence must 

ensure that the supply of alcohol at the premises is carried on in accordance with 
the age verification policy. 

 

(3) The policy must require individuals who appear to the responsible person to be 

under 18 years of age (or such older age as may be specified in the policy) to 

produce on request, before being served alcohol, identification bearing their 

photograph, date of birth and either— 

 (a)  a holographic mark, or 

 (b)  an ultraviolet feature. 

 
7.  The responsible person must ensure that— 

(a)  where any of the following alcoholic drinks is sold or supplied for consumption on 

the premises (other than alcoholic drinks sold or supplied having been made up 

in advance ready for sale or supply in a securely closed container) it is available 

to customers in the following measures— 

  (i)  beer or cider: ½ pint;  

(ii)  gin, rum, vodka or whisky: 25 ml or 35 ml; and 

   (iii)  still wine in a glass: 125 ml; 

 
(b)  these measures are displayed in a menu, price list or other printed material 

which is available to customers on the premises; and 
 
(c) where a customer does not in relation to a sale of alcohol specify the quantity of 

alcohol to be sold, the customer is made aware that these measures are 
available. 

 
A responsible person in relation to a licensed premises means the holder of the premise licence 
in respect of the premises, the designated premises supervisor (if any) or any individual aged 
18 or over who is authorised by either the licence holder or designated premises supervisor.  

page 68



For premises with a club premises certificate, any member or officer of the club present on the 
premises in a capacity that which enables him to prevent the supply of alcohol. 
 
8(i) A relevant person shall ensure that no alcohol is sold or supplied for consumption on or 

off the premises for a price which is less than the permitted price. 
 
8(ii) For the purposes of the condition set out in paragraph 8(i) above - 
 

(a)  "duty" is to be construed in accordance with the Alcoholic Liquor Duties Act 
1979; 

 
(b)  "permitted price" is the price found by applying the formula - 

 
P = D+(DxV) 

 
Where - 

  
(i) P is the permitted price, 
(ii) D is the amount of duty chargeable in relation to the alcohol as if the duty     

were charged on the date of the sale or supply of the alcohol, and 
(iii) V is the rate of value added tax chargeable in relation to the alcohol as if 

the value added tax were charged on the date of the sale or supply of the 
alcohol; 

 
(c)  "relevant person" means, in relation to premises in respect of which there is in 

force a premises licence - 
   

(i)  the holder of the premises licence, 
(ii)  the designated premises supervisor (if any) in respect of such a licence, 

or 
(iii)  the personal licence holder who makes or authorises a supply of    

alcohol under such a licence; 
 

(d)   "relevant person" means, in relation to premises in respect of which there is in 
force a club premises certificate, any member or officer of the club present on the 
premises in a capacity which enables the member or officer to prevent the supply 
in question; and 

 
(e)  "value added tax" means value added tax charged in accordance with the Value 

Added Tax Act 1994. 
 
8(iii). Where the permitted price given by Paragraph 8(ii)(b) above would (apart from this 

paragraph) not be a whole number of pennies, the price given by that sub-paragraph 
shall be taken to be the price actually given by that sub-paragraph rounded up to the 
nearest penny. 

 
8(iv).     (1)  Sub-paragraph 8(iv)(2) below applies where the permitted price given by 

Paragraph 8(ii)(b) above on a day ("the first day") would be different from the 
permitted price on the next day ("the second day") as a result of a change to the 
rate of duty or value added tax. 

(2)  The permitted price which would apply on the first day applies to sales or 
supplies of alcohol which take place before the expiry of the period of 14 days 
beginning on the second day. 

 

9. Admission of children to the premises must be restricted in accordance with the film 
classification recommended by the British Board of Film Classification or recommended 
by this licensing authority as appropriate. 

page 69



 
10. All persons guarding premises against unauthorised access or occupation or against 

outbreaks of disorder or against damage (door supervisors) must be licensed by the 
Security Industry Authority. 

 
 
Annex 2 – Conditions consistent with the operating Schedule 
 
11. Licensable activities shall only be provided to: 
 
(a) members of a private club and their bona fide guests (not exceeding 4 guests per member). No 

person shall be admitted to membership of the private club or be entitled to take advantage of  
any of the privileges of membership without an interval of at least 24 hours between their 
nomination or application for membership and their admission. 

 
(b) persons attending a pre- booked and bona fide private function or event to which members of the 

public are not admitted. A register of persons attending the event shall be kept at the premises 
for 31 days and made available for immediate inspection by police or an authorised officer of the 
Council.  

 
12. A list of the names and addresses of members of the Club shall be kept on the premises at all 

times together with a book showing the names and dates of attendance of any guests introduced 
by members. Both the list and the book shall be produced on demand for inspection by the police 
or an authorised officer of the Council. 

 
13. The premises shall install and maintain a comprehensive CCTV system as per the minimum 

requirements of the Westminster Police Licensing Team. All entry and exit points will be covered 
enabling frontal identification of every person entering in any light condition. The CCTV system 
shall continually record whilst the premises is open for licensable activities and during all times 
when customers remain on the premises. All recordings shall be stored for a minimum period of 
31 days with date and time stamping. Viewing of recordings shall be made available immediately 
upon the request of Police or authorised officer throughout the entire 31 day period.  

 
14. A staff member from the premises who is conversant with the operation of the CCTV system shall 

be on the premises at all times when the premises is open. This staff member must be able to 
provide a Police or authorised council officer copies of recent CCTV images or data with the 
absolute minimum of delay when requested.  

 
15. An incident log shall be kept at the premises, and made available on request to an authorised 

officer of the City Council or the Police. It must be completed within 24 hours of the incident and 
will record the following: 
(a) all crimes reported to the venue  
(b) all ejections of patrons  
(c) any complaints received concerning crime and disorder  
(d) any incidents of disorder  
(e) all seizures of drugs or offensive weapons 
(f) any faults in the CCTV system 
(g) any refusal of the sale of alcohol 
(h) any visit by a relevant authority or emergency service. 

 
16. Substantial food and non-intoxicating beverages, including drinking water, shall be available in all 

parts of the premises where alcohol is sold or supplied for consumption on the premises. 
 
17. All sales of alcohol for consumption off the premises shall be in sealed containers only, and shall 

not be consumed on the premises.  
 
18. There shall be no sales of alcohol for consumption off the premises after 23:00 hours. 
 

19. There shall be no sales of hot food or hot drink for consumption 'Off' the premises after 
23:00 hours. 

 

page 70



20. All windows and external doors shall be kept closed after 23:00 hours, except for the immediate 
access and egress of persons. 

 
21. Notices shall be prominently displayed at all exits requesting patrons to respect the needs of local 

residents and businesses and leave the area quietly. 
 
22. Notices shall be prominently displayed at any area used for smoking requesting patrons to 

respect the needs of local residents and use the area quietly. 
 
23. No noise generated on the premises, or by its associated plant or equipment, shall emanate from 

the premises nor vibration be transmitted through the structure of the premises which gives rise 
to a nuisance.  

 
24. During the hours of operation of the premises, the licence holder shall ensure sufficient measures 

are in place to remove and prevent litter or waste arising or accumulating from customers in the 
area immediately outside the premises, and that this area shall be swept and or washed, and 
litter and sweepings collected and stored in accordance with the approved refuse storage 
arrangements by close of business. 

 
25. A Challenge 21 proof of age scheme shall be operated at the premises where the only 

acceptable forms of identification are recognised photographic identification cards, such as a 
driving licence, passport or proof of age card with the PASS Hologram.  

 
26. The approved arrangements at the premises, including means of escape provisions, emergency 

warning equipment, the electrical installation and mechanical equipment, shall at all material 
times be maintained in good condition and full working order. 

 
27. The means of escape provided for the premises shall be maintained unobstructed, free of trip 

hazards, be immediately available and clearly identified in accordance with the plans provided. 
 
28. All emergency exit doors shall be available at all material times without the use of a key, code, 

card or similar means.  
 
29. All emergency doors shall be maintained effectively self-closing and not held open other than by 

an approved device. 
 
30. The edges of the treads of steps and stairways shall be maintained so as to be conspicuous. 
 
31. Curtains and hangings shall be arranged so as not to obstruct emergency safety signs or 

emergency equipment. 
 
32. All fabrics, curtains, drapes and similar features including materials used in finishing and 

furnishing shall be either non-combustible or be durably or inherently flame-retarded fabric. Any 
fabrics used in escape routes (other than foyers), entertainment areas or function rooms, shall be 
non-combustible. 

 
33. There shall be no striptease or nudity, and all persons shall be decently attired at all times, except 

when the premises are operating under the authority of a Sexual Entertainment Venue licence. 
 
34. Unless otherwise agreed in writing with the Metropolitan Police, there shall be: -  

a) A minimum of 2 SIA licensed door supervisors after 9pm; and 
b) A minimum of 1 SIA licensed door supervisor at all times. 

 
35. All SIA door supervisors shall display appropriate SIA identification. 
 
36. There shall be no drinks taken from the premises onto the public highway. 
 
37. Loudspeakers shall not be located in the entrance lobby or outside the premises building 

including the external terrace. 
 

page 71



38.  The number of persons permitted on the premises at any one time (excluding staff) shall not 
exceed: 

 
(a) Basement: 150 
(b) Lower Ground Floor: 100 
(c) Ground Floor: 120 
(d) First Floor: 120 
(e) Second Floor: 100 
(f) Third Floor: 100 
(g) Fourth Floor Terrace: 60 
Subject to an overall maximum of 600 at anyone time. 

 
 
Annex 3 – Conditions attached after a hearing by the licensing authority 
 
None. 
 
Conditions agreed with the Metropolitan Police Service. 
 
39. (MC99) A copy of the premises’ dispersal policy shall be made readily available at the 

premises for inspection by a police officer and/or an authorised officer of Westminster 
City Council.  

 
Conditions agreed with an interested party. 
 
40. Apart from a maximum of four pre-arranged members events per annum the maximum 

number of persons on the premises after 01.00 shall not exceed 425 excluding staff. 

 
 
 
 

page 72



 

Residential Map and List of Premises in the Vicinity         Appendix 5 
 

 
 
Resident Count: 5 

page 73



 

Licensed premises within 75 metres of: 6 Grafton Street London W1S 4EQ 

Licence Number Trading Name Address Premises Type Time Period 

22/11947/LIPVM 6 Grafton Street 

6 Grafton Street 
London  
W1S 4EQ Club or institution 

Monday; 08:00 - 
00:00 | Monday; 
08:00 - 00:00 | 
Tuesday; 08:00 - 
00:00 | Tuesday; 
08:00 - 00:00 | 
Wednesday; 
08:00 - 00:00 | 
Wednesday; 
08:00 - 00:00 | 
Thursday; 08:00 - 
00:00 | Thursday; 
08:00 - 00:00 | 
Friday; 08:00 - 
00:00 | Saturday; 
08:00 - 00:00 | 
Saturday; 08:00 - 
00:00 | Sunday; 
08:00 - 00:00 | 
Sunday; 08:00 - 
00:00 | Sunday; 
08:00 - 00:00 

17/08787/LIPN 

Warayaki, 
Starwash 
Building, 

Bruton Lane 
London Restaurant 

Sunday; 12:00 - 
23:00 | Monday 
to Thursday; 
10:00 - 00:00 | 
Friday to 
Saturday; 10:00 - 
00:30 

14/08468/LIPDPS Mr Fogg's 

15 Bruton Lane 
London W1J 
6JD Wine bar 

Friday to 
Saturday; 08:00 - 
02:30 | Sunday to 
Thursday; 08:00 - 
02:00 

23/03046/LIPDPS 

Area Of Land 
Next to Mr 
Foggs 
Residence 

15 Bruton Lane 
London W1J 
6JD 

Public house or 
pub restaurant 

Monday to 
Sunday; 09:00 - 
23:30 

page 74



23/03047/LIPDPS Mr Foggs 

15 Bruton Lane 
London W1J 
6JD Wine bar 

Monday; 08:00 - 
02:30 | Tuesday; 
08:00 - 02:30 | 
Wednesday; 
08:00 - 02:30 | 
Thursday; 08:00 - 
02:30 | Friday; 
08:00 - 02:30 | 
Sunday; 08:00 - 
00:30 

21/04790/LIPVM Oswalds 

25 Albemarle 
Street London 
W1S 4HX Restaurant 

Sunday; 10:00 - 
23:00 | Monday 
to Saturday; 
10:00 - 01:00 

18/09579/LIPVM Not Recorded 

25 Albemarle 
Street London 
W1S 4HX Restaurant 

Sunday; 12:00 - 
23:00 | Monday 
to Thursday; 
07:00 - 00:00 | 
Friday to 
Saturday; 07:00 - 
00:30 | Sundays 
before Bank 
Holidays; 07:00 - 
00:30 

23/03003/LIPDPS Sexyfish 

4 Berkeley 
Square London 
W1J 6EB Restaurant 

Sunday; 08:00 - 
01:00 | Monday 
to Saturday; 
07:00 - 02:00 

page 75



22/02608/LIPDPS Not Recorded 

10 Berkeley 
Square London 
W1J 6AA Not Recorded 

Monday; 07:00 - 
01:30 | Tuesday; 
07:00 - 01:30 | 
Wednesday; 
07:00 - 03:00 | 
Thursday; 07:00 - 
03:00 | Friday; 
07:00 - 03:00 | 
Saturday; 07:00 - 
03:00 | Sunday; 
09:00 - 01:30 

19/11917/LIPDPS 
12 Hay Hill 
Limited 

Lower Ground 
Floor To Fourth 
Floor 12 Hay Hill 
London W1J 
8NR Office 

Not Recorded; 
XXXX - XXXX 

22/01058/LIPDPS Isabel Mayfair 

26B - 26C 
Albemarle 
Street London 
W1S 4HY Not Recorded 

Sunday; 08:00 - 
23:00 | Monday 
to Saturday; 
08:00 - 02:30 

15/08436/LIPN Sumosan 

26B Albemarle 
Street London 
W1S 4HY Restaurant 

Sunday; 12:00 - 
23:00 | Monday 
to Saturday; 
09:00 - 01:30 

page 76



17/10979/LIPN Warayaki 

Development 
Site At Berkeley 
Square House 
6-19 Berkeley 
Square And 17 - 
20 Bruton Street 
London Not Recorded 

Sunday; 10:00 - 
23:00 | Monday 
to Saturday; 
10:00 - 01:30 | 
Sundays before 
Bank Holidays; 
10:00 - 01:30 | 
New Year's Eve; 
10:00 - 00:00 | 
New Year's Day; 
00:00 - 01:30 

 

page 77



This page is intentionally left blank



page 79

Agenda Item 2.



page 80



page 81



page 82



page 83



The consideration of applications for later hours for Bank 
Holiday Mondays will take into account that later hours are 
generally granted for preceding Sundays and that the next day 
is a working day. Non-specific days are expected to be covered 
by Temporary Event Notices or variation applications. 

C. For the purpose of Clauses A and B above, the Core Hours for 
applications for each premises use type as defined within this policy 
are: 
Pubs and bars, Fast Food and Music and Dance venues  
Monday to Thursday: 10am to 11.30pm.  
Friday and Saturday: 10am to Midnight.  
Sunday: Midday to 10.30pm. Sundays immediately prior to a bank 
holiday: Midday to Midnight  
D. Core hours are when customers are permitted to be on the 
premises and therefore the maximum opening hours permitted will 
be to the same start and terminal hours for each of the days where 
licensable activity is permitted 

Policy PB1 applies A. Applications outside the West End Cumulative Zone will generally 
be granted subject to:  

1. The application meeting the requirements of policies CD1, PS1, 
PN1 and CH1.  

2. The hours for licensable activities being within the council’s 
Core Hours Policy HRS1.  

3. The operation of any delivery services for alcohol and/or late 
night refreshment meeting the council’s Ancillary Delivery of 
Alcohol and/or Late-Night Refreshment Policy DEL1.  

4. The applicant has taken account of the Special Consideration 
Zones policy SCZ1 if the premises are located within a 
designated zone.  

5. The application and operation of the venue meet the definition 
of a Public House or Bar in Clause D.  

B. It is the Licensing Authority’s policy to refuse applications within 
the West End Cumulative Impact Zone other than:  

1. Applications to vary the existing licence hours within the 
council’s Core Hours Policy HRS1.  

2. Applications that seek to vary the existing licence so as to 
reduce the overall capacity of the premises.  

C. The applications referred to in Clause B1 and B2 will generally be 
granted subject to:  

1. The application meeting the requirements of policies CD1, PS1, 
PN1 and CH1, and/or,  

2. The operation of any delivery services for alcohol and/or late 
night refreshment meeting the council’s Ancillary Delivery of 
Alcohol and/or Late-Night Refreshment Policy DEL1.  

3. The application and operation of the venue continuing to meet 
the definition of a Public House or Bar in Clause D.  

D. For the purposes of this policy a Public House or Bar is defined 
as a premises, or part of a premises that’s primary use is the sale or 
supply of alcohol for consumption on those premises and/or for 
consumption off the premises for consumption outside the venue. 

page 84



page 85



Premises Plans          Appendix 1 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

page 86



 
 
 
 

 

  
 

 
 
 

 
  

page 87



 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

page 88



 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

page 89



 
 

  

 
 
 

 
 
 
 

page 90



 

page 91



page 92



page 93



Rear Façade of the building 
 

 
 

page 94



page 95



page 96



Premises History         Appendix 3 
 
There is no licence or appeal history for the premises.

page 97



 
 

Appendix 4 
 
CONDITIONS CONSISTENT WITH THE OPERATING SCHEDULE AND CONDITIONS 
PROPOSED BY A PARTY TO THE HEARING  
 
When determining an application for a new premises licence under the provisions of the 
Licensing Act 2003, the licensing authority must, unless it decides to reject the application, grant 
the licence subject to the conditions which are indicated as mandatory in this schedule. 
 
At a hearing the licensing authority may, in addition, and having regard to any representations 
received, grant the licence subject to such conditions which are consistent with the operating 
schedule submitted by the applicant as part of their application, or alter or omit these conditions, 
or add any new condition to such extent as the licensing authority considers necessary for the 
promotion of the licensing objectives. 
 
This schedule lists those conditions which are consistent with the operating schedule, or 
proposed as necessary for the promotion of the licensing objectives by a responsible authority 
or an interested party as indicated. These conditions have not been submitted by the licensing 
service but reflect the positions of the applicant, responsible authority or interested party and 
have not necessarily been agreed 
 
Mandatory Conditions 
 
1. No supply of alcohol may be made at a time when there is no designated premises 

supervisor in respect of this licence. 
 
2. No supply of alcohol may be made at a time when the designated premises supervisor 

does not hold a personal licence or the personal licence is suspended. 
 
3. Every supply of alcohol under this licence must be made or authorised by a person who 

holds a personal licence. 
 
4.          (1)  The responsible person must ensure that staff on relevant premises do not carry 

out, arrange or participate in any irresponsible promotions in relation to the 
premises. 

 
(2)  In this paragraph, an irresponsible promotion means any one or more of the 

following activities, or substantially similar activities, carried on for the purpose of 
encouraging the sale or supply of alcohol for consumption on the premises— 

 
(a)  games or other activities which require or encourage, or are designed to require 

or encourage, individuals to; 
 

(i)  drink a quantity of alcohol within a time limit (other than to drink alcohol 
sold or supplied on the premises before the cessation of the period in 
which the responsible person is authorised to sell or supply alcohol), or 

(ii)  drink as much alcohol as possible (whether within a time limit or 
otherwise); 

 
(b)  provision of unlimited or unspecified quantities of alcohol free or for a fixed or 

discounted fee to the public or to a group defined by a particular characteristic in 
a manner which carries a significant risk of undermining a licensing objective; 

 
(c)  provision of free or discounted alcohol or any other thing as a prize to encourage 

or reward the purchase and consumption of alcohol over a period of 24 hours or 

page 98



less in a manner which carries a significant risk of undermining a licensing 
objective; 

 
(d)  selling or supplying alcohol in association with promotional posters or flyers on, 

or in the vicinity of, the premises which can reasonably be considered to 
condone, encourage or glamorise anti-social behaviour or to refer to the effects 
of drunkenness in any favourable manner; 

 
 (e) dispensing alcohol directly by one person into the mouth of another (other than 

where that other person is unable to drink without assistance by reason of a 
disability). 

 
5.  The responsible person must ensure that free potable water is provided on request to 

customers where it is reasonably available. 
 
6.          (1)  The premises licence holder or club premises certificate holder must ensure that 

an age verification policy is adopted in respect of the premises in relation to the 
sale or supply of alcohol. 

 
(2)  The designated premises supervisor in relation to the premises licence must 

ensure that the supply of alcohol at the premises is carried on in accordance with 
the age verification policy. 

 

(3) The policy must require individuals who appear to the responsible person to be 

under 18 years of age (or such older age as may be specified in the policy) to 

produce on request, before being served alcohol, identification bearing their 

photograph, date of birth and either— 

 (a)  a holographic mark, or 

 (b)  an ultraviolet feature. 

 
7.  The responsible person must ensure that— 

(a)  where any of the following alcoholic drinks is sold or supplied for consumption on 

the premises (other than alcoholic drinks sold or supplied having been made up 

in advance ready for sale or supply in a securely closed container) it is available 

to customers in the following measures— 

  (i)  beer or cider: ½ pint;  

(ii)  gin, rum, vodka or whisky: 25 ml or 35 ml; and 

   (iii)  still wine in a glass: 125 ml; 

 
(b)  these measures are displayed in a menu, price list or other printed material 

which is available to customers on the premises; and 
 
(c) where a customer does not in relation to a sale of alcohol specify the quantity of 

alcohol to be sold, the customer is made aware that these measures are 
available. 

 
A responsible person in relation to a licensed premises means the holder of the premise licence 
in respect of the premises, the designated premises supervisor (if any) or any individual aged 
18 or over who is authorised by either the licence holder or designated premises supervisor.  
For premises with a club premises certificate, any member or officer of the club present on the 
premises in a capacity that which enables him to prevent the supply of alcohol. 

page 99



 
8(i) A relevant person shall ensure that no alcohol is sold or supplied for consumption on or 

off the premises for a price which is less than the permitted price. 
 
8(ii) For the purposes of the condition set out in paragraph 8(i) above - 
 

(a)  "duty" is to be construed in accordance with the Alcoholic Liquor Duties Act 
1979; 

 
(b)  "permitted price" is the price found by applying the formula - 

 
P = D+(DxV) 

 
Where - 

  
(i) P is the permitted price, 
(ii) D is the amount of duty chargeable in relation to the alcohol as if the duty     

were charged on the date of the sale or supply of the alcohol, and 
(iii) V is the rate of value added tax chargeable in relation to the alcohol as if 

the value added tax were charged on the date of the sale or supply of the 
alcohol; 

 
(c)  "relevant person" means, in relation to premises in respect of which there is in 

force a premises licence - 
   

(i)  the holder of the premises licence, 
(ii)  the designated premises supervisor (if any) in respect of such a licence, 

or 
(iii)  the personal licence holder who makes or authorises a supply of    

alcohol under such a licence; 
 

(d)   "relevant person" means, in relation to premises in respect of which there is in 
force a club premises certificate, any member or officer of the club present on the 
premises in a capacity which enables the member or officer to prevent the supply 
in question; and 

 
(e)  "value added tax" means value added tax charged in accordance with the Value 

Added Tax Act 1994. 
 
8(iii). Where the permitted price given by Paragraph 8(ii)(b) above would (apart from this 

paragraph) not be a whole number of pennies, the price given by that sub-paragraph 
shall be taken to be the price actually given by that sub-paragraph rounded up to the 
nearest penny. 

 
8(iv).     (1)  Sub-paragraph 8(iv)(2) below applies where the permitted price given by 

Paragraph 8(ii)(b) above on a day ("the first day") would be different from the 
permitted price on the next day ("the second day") as a result of a change to the 
rate of duty or value added tax. 

(2)  The permitted price which would apply on the first day applies to sales or 
supplies of alcohol which take place before the expiry of the period of 14 days 
beginning on the second day. 

 

page 100



Conditions proposed by the Metropolitan Police and agreed by the applicant to form part 
of the operating schedule. 
 
9.  The premises shall install and maintain a comprehensive CCTV system as per the 

minimum requirements of the Westminster Police Licensing Team. All entry and exit 
points will be covered enabling frontal identification of every person entering in any light 
condition. The CCTV system shall continually record whilst the premises is open for 
licensable activities and during all times when customers remain on the premises. All 
recordings shall be stored for a minimum period of 31 days with date and time stamping. 
Viewing of recordings shall be made available immediately upon the request of Police or 
authorised officer throughout the entire 31-day period. 

 

10.  A staff member from the premises who is conversant with the operation of the CCTV 

system shall be on the premises at all times when the premises is open for licensable 

activities. This staff member must be able to provide a Police or authorised council 

officer copies of recent CCTV images or data with the absolute minimum of delay when 

requested.  

  

11.  The Licence holder will ensure a full risk assessment is completed for all prebooked 

events organised by external clients. This risk assessment will be available to the 

licensing authority and Police upon request.   

12.  An incident log shall be kept at the premises, and made available on request to an 

authorised officer of the City Council or the Police. It must be completed within 24 hours 

of the incident and will record the following:   

  

(a) all crimes reported to the venue   

(b) all ejections of patrons   

(c) any complaints received concerning crime and disorder   

(d) any incidents of disorder   

(e) all seizures of drugs or offensive weapons   

(f) any faults in the CCTV system  

(g) any refusal of the sale of alcohol   

(h) any visit by a relevant authority or emergency service.  

  

13. A Challenge 21 or Challenge 25 proof of age scheme shall be operated at the premises 

where the only acceptable forms of identification are recognised photographic 

identification cards, such as a driving licence, passport or proof of age card with the 

PASS Hologram.  

  

14.  The licensable areas shall be restricted to the Basement, Second and Fourth floors only.  

  

15. No licensable activity will take place on the Fourth floor terrace area after 21:00 hours.  

 

Conditions proposed by Environmental Health and agreed by the applicant to form part 

of the operating schedule 

 

16. The licensable activities authorised by this licence and provided at the 
premises shall be ancillary to the main function of the premises as offices. 

 
17. The supply of alcohol shall only be to 

a) Directors and employees of the licence holder and its affiliated companies; 
b) Persons attending a private pre-booked event, seminar or function 
c) Any guests of the above. 
A list of whom shall be kept on the premises at all times together with a record 

page 101



also showing the names and dates of attendance of any guests introduced by 
members. All records shall be produced on demand for inspection by the police 
or an authorised officer of the Council. 
 

18. Patrons permitted to temporarily leave and then re-enter the premises, e.g. to 
smoke, shall not be permitted to take drinks or glass containers with them. 
 

19. The means of escape provided for the premises shall be maintained 
unobstructed, free of trip hazards, be immediately available and clearly 
identified in accordance with the plans provided. 
 

20. All emergency doors shall be maintained effectively self-closing and not held 
open other than by an approved device. 
 

21. No noise generated on the premises, or by its associated plant or equipment, 
shall emanate from the premises nor vibration be transmitted through the 
structure of the premises which gives rise to a nuisance. 

 
 
 

page 102



Residential Map and List of Premises in the Vicinity                             Appendix 5 
 
 

 
 
  Resident Count: 119 
 
 

 
Licensed premises within 75m of 30 Buckingham Gate, London, SW1E 6NN 

 

Licence Number Trading Name Address 
Premises 
Type Time Period 

22/04917/LIPDPS Colonies 

25 Wilfred Street 
London 
SW1E 6PR 

Public 
House 

Monday to Thursday 
– 09:00 – 23:30; 
Friday to Saturday – 
09:00 – 00:00 

 
 
 
 
 
 

page 103



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	1. Maison Estelle, 6 Grafton Street, W1S 4EQ
	6 Grafton Street_Variation LSC Report.pdf
	all submissions.pdf
	Lt 5GS 05.06.23.pdf
	23071138_techmemo_6GraftonSt_MaisonEstelle.pdf
	Dispersal Policy.pdf
	AS Observations 18.03.23.pdf
	AS Observations 23.06.23.pdf


	2. Caledonia Group Services Ltd, 30 Buckingham Gate, SW1E 6NU



